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1.    REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Your D i recto r s submit the i r  repor t fo r the f inancia l  year ended 3 0 June 2017. 

1 .1.   CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

Dear Shareho lder s

I t  i s  a p leasu re to be ab le to repor t another p rof i tab le year fo r the Company w i th a net p rof i t 
befo re tax of $1,932,019, wh ich i s  a subs tant ia l  increase f rom the p rev ious year ( increase af te r 
res tatement of $1,824,074).

As repor ted las t year,  in August 2016 we were ab le to reso lve the ongoing use of the Ch i ron 
Hosp i ta l  Management Sys tem w ith SA Hea l th.

Another h igh l ight fo r the year was ou r announcement in Apr i l  of  the commercia l i sat ion 
of the L i fecard Per sona l Hea l th Record fo r consumer s ,  together w i th the HotHea l th d ig i ta l 
engagement p lat fo r m fo r p rov ider s .

The majo r connect iv i t y ro l lout across Pen insu la Hea l th wh ich was announced in May was a l so 
a majo r m i les tone fo r the Company. 

Wh i le the economy in Aus t ra l ia cont inues to be cha l leng ing, we s t i l l  expect to make majo r 
sa les into ou r home count r y,  as wel l  as g row ing ou r sa les into the fas t expand ing hea l thcare 
mar ket in the ASE AN Reg ion. Th i s  bodes wel l  fo r another success fu l  year.

I  wou ld to thank ou r CEO, Mathew Cher ian, fo r h i s  t i re les s wor k in ensu r ing the cont inued 
success of the Company, as wel l  as ou r ve r y ha rdwor k ing and loya l employees, and my fe l low 
Board member s .

Our goa l i s  to cont inue to increase ou r p rof i tab i l i t y,  and in tu rn capi ta l  va lue, fo r ou r ve r y 
suppor t ive sha reho lder s .  Pay ing t wo specia l  d iv idends du r ing the year was a par t icu la r ly 
sat i s f y ing way of reward ing ou r sha reho lder s fo r the i r  pat ience.
 
You r s s incere ly
Your s fa i thfu l l y,

Steven Le igh Pynt
Non-Execut ive Chai rman
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1 .2.   CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OPERATIONS 
REPORT

1.3.   F INANCIAL SUMMARY
Your D i recto r s submit the i r  repor t fo r f inancia l  year ended 3 0 June 
2017. The Prev ious Cor respond ing Per iod (PCP) fo r th i s  repor t i s  the 
t welve months to 3 0 June 2016. 

F INANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
• Revenue - $10.3M Up 98% ( inc lud ing $5m f rom the set t lement of 

the Ch i ron Sof t ware l i t igat ion)
• Net P rof i t  Befo re Tax -  $1,932,019 -  up 1690%
• Earn ings Pe r Share (EPS) befo re tax up 20 8 4% to 5 .81 cent s pe r sha re
• D iv idends pa id of 2 cents per sha re

REVIEW OF THE F INANCIAL YEAR TO JUNE 2017

Th roughout F Y17, we ach ieved a lot as a bus iness .  The reso lut ion of 
the ongoing use of the CH IRON Hosp i ta l  Management Sys tem w ith SA 
Hea l th in August was a good s ta r t  to the f inancia l  year.  Inves tment 
in new product deve lopment increased by near ly 10% to $1.4 8m 
and enabled an accele rated innovat ion p rog ram ta rget ing g reate r 
consumer engagement and connect iv i t y fo r consumer s and the i r 
hea l th ca re p rov ider s . 

The under ly ing des ign ph i losophy i s  a “mobi le - f i r s t ” a rch i tectu re to 
opt im i se the use r exper ience on mobi le smar t phones and tab let s 
in add i t ion to the t rad i t iona l w ider sc reens of per sona l computer s . 
The “mobi le - f i r s t ” des ign ph i losophy i s  a mar ket- lead ing response 
to g loba l usage t rends . In Apr i l ,  the Company announced the 
commercia l  re lease of the L i fecard Per sona l Hea l th Record fo r 
consumer s a long w i th the HotHea l th d ig i ta l  engagement p lat fo r m fo r 
p rov ider s .  L i fecard and HotHea l th a re the embodiment of ou r long -
s tand ing v i s ion to connect c l in ic ians and consumer s and s t reaml ine 
the pat ient jou rney. 

Our cu r rent and g row ing mar ket p resence across hea l thcare 
p rov ider s combines w i th th i s  new techno logy to enhance the end -
use r exper ience fo r both consumer s and p rov ider s and ach ieve 
mean ingfu l  sca le in the consumer mar ket.

The in i t ia l  dep loyment of the L i fecard pat ient po r ta l  was across th ree 
ear ly adopter s i tes in the acute (hosp i ta l)  secto r and th ree communit y 
hea l thcare p rov ider s fo r on - go ing consumer engagement.  Ea r ly 
feedback f rom cus tomer s has been ver y encourag ing w i th up to 5 0% 
of p re - admis s ions fo r ms submit ted on l ine w i th in 6 months of launch. 
L i fecard Pat ient Po r ta l  i s  now in genera l  re lease fo r the Company’s 
w ider base of cus tomer s . 

We have secured ag reements w i th t wo hea l thcare p rofess iona l 
o rgan i sat ions cover ing approx imate ly 15,0 0 0 ind iv idua l p rov ider s fo r 
the commercia l  re lease of the more comprehens ive HotHea l th d ig i ta l 
engagement p lat fo r m fo r p rov ider s .

SOLUTIONS

L I FECARD

A per sona l hea l th reco rd fo r 
consumer s to secu re ly s to re 
and access hea l th in fo r mat ion 
any where, any t ime and on any 
dev ice. 

Impo r tant pe r sona l hea l th 
in fo r mat ion, key obse r vat ions and 
measu rements can be mon i to red 
and t racked to encou rage 
pos i t i ve behav io r change. 

The L i feca rd p lat fo r m empower s 
i nd iv idua l s to p ro - act ive ly 
ma inta in the i r  we l lnes s and 
manage the i r  hea l th outcomes.   
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HOTHEALTH

A pat ient engagement p lat fo r m 
fo r hea l thca re p ract i t ione r s to 
engage w i th pat ient s and c l ient s 
on l ine. 

Eas i l y c reate and ma inta in a 
bus ines s on l ine w i th a webs i te 
and mobi le app that s t reaml ines 
the pat ient jou r ney and bu i lds 
commun i t ies a round the i r 
p ract ice. 
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 Review of the fi nancial year to June 2017 (continued).

HotHeal th w i l l  record pat ient consent,  p rov ide fo r on l ine 
appointments and te le - consu l t ing in add i t ion to the L i fecard pat ient 
po r ta l  fo r fo r ms and assessments .  In May, the Company announced 
a majo r connect iv i t y ro l lout across Pen insu la Hea l th -  the majo r 
hea l th ca re p rov ider se r v ing the met ropo l i tan and reg iona l a reas on 
V icto r ia’s Morn ington Pen insu la. 

Pen insu la Hea l th i s  a met ropo l i tan pub l ic hea l th se r v ice w i th over 90 0 
beds, de l ive r ing hea l thcare se r v ices to a popu lat ion of over 3 0 0,0 0 0 
across a reg ion of approx imate ly 90 0 square k i lomet res .
Apar t f rom improvements in wor k f low p roduct iv i t y and pat ient safet y, 
a key d r ive r fo r the Connect iv i t y p ro ject i s  to meet the V icto r ian 
Government’s eRefe r ra l  and Access Po l ic ies fo r manag ing refe r ra l s . 
Th i s  cover s the p rocess ing and l i ve t rack ing of Refe r ra l s  and the 
repor t ing of KPI s  re lat ing to inbound refe r ra l s .

The in i t ia l  phase of the Refe r ra l  Management p ro ject has been 
p rog ress ive ly ro l led out s ince December 2016 w i th d i scharge 
summar ies sent e lect ron ica l l y f rom F rank s ton Hosp i ta l’s  Cerner 
E lect ron ic Medica l Record sys tem th rough Globa l Hea l th’s Refe r ra lNet 
secure messag ing p lat fo r m, to Genera l  P ract i t ioner s (GPs) and 
Specia l i s t s  in the reg ion.

Over 65% of d i scharge summar ies f rom Pen insu la Hea l th a re now sent 
v ia the Refe r ra lNet p lat fo r m. Integ rat ion to the hosp i ta l’s  i PM Pat ient 
Admin i s t rat ion Sys tem has been completed w i th a l im i ted ro l lout of 
in - bound refe r ra l s  to 2 of 4 0 outpat ient c l in ics at the hosp i ta l  now in 
p rog res s .

The Company has a l so ach ieved inte roperab i l i t y w i th Te l s t ra Hea l th’s 
A rgus Messag ing p lat fo r m w i th Refe r ra lNet subscr iber s ab le to send 
to A rgus subscr iber s .  Vo lumes of Refe r ra lNet to A rgus messages more 
than t r ip led over the 6 months to June in the l im i ted t r ia l s . 

Two -way messag ing f rom Argus to Refe r ra lNet i s  i n advanced s tages 
of f ie ld tes t ing fo l low ing wh ich Refe r ra lNet and Argus inte roperab i l i t y 
w i l l  be ava i lab le fo r genera l  mar ket re lease.

Over the 12 months to 3 0 -June, Refe r ra lNet subscr iber s g rew by 8% 
wh i le t ransact ion vo lumes g rew by 20% .

The leve l of expend i tu re in innovat ion i s  rev iewed ever y 6 months to 
ensu re retu rn on inves tments a re per fo r ming in l i ne w i th fo recast s . 

Impai r ment charges of $917k were appl ied aga ins t intang ib le asset s 
fo l low ing a rev iew by the Board. 
The net resu l t  i s  a repor ted record net p rof i t  befo re tax of $1.93m 
represent ing Ea rn ings Pe r Share befo re tax of 5 . 8 cents .

SOLUTIONS

MASTERCARE +

A web - based p lat fo r m 
and mar ketp lace w i th an 
ex tens ib le and modu la r 
des ign, enab l ing use r s to 
conf igu re the featu res they 
need fo r the i r  hea l thcare 
bus iness . 

Maste rCare + i s  of fe red 
as a subscr ipt ion sof t ware 
se r v ice access ib le any where, 
any t ime and on any dev ice. 
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REFERRALNET

A secure messag ing p lat fo r m 
fo r hea l thcare p rov ider s to 
secure ly send and receive 
pat ient - re lated documents 
such as refe r ra l s ,  let te r s , 
resu l t s  and d i scharge 
summar ies . 

Secure messag ing improves 
bus iness p roduct iv i t y and 
pat ient outcomes by reducing 
the need fo r re - key ing of data 
and min im i s ing t ranscr ipt ion 
e r ro r s .
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Review of the fi nancial year to June 2017 (continued)

I n the 5 year s to 3 0 -Jun -2017, the sha re p r ice of GLH has p rov ided 
a retu rn in excess of 49% CAGR (Compound Annua l Grow th Rate) 
inc lus ive of d iv idends.

CORE OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Company’s co re operat iona l revenue i s  der ived f rom the sa le 
of sof t ware annua l subscr ipt ions and p roduct- re lated p rofess iona l 
se r v ices to:

Specia l i s t s ,  Genera l  P ract i t ioner s ,  Communit y Hea l th and A l l ied 
Hea l th P rov ider s (the non - acute o r Communit y secto r) and,
Overn ight and Day Hosp i ta l s  (the acute o r Hosp i ta l  secto r). 

Sof t ware fo r connect iv i t y i s  so ld under the Refe r ra lNet b rand (w w w.
refe r ra lnet.com.au) wh i le sof t ware fo r hea l thcare p rov ider s a re so ld 
under the Maste rCare (w w w.maste rCare.net.au/ )  and Pr imar yCl in ic 
(w w w.pr imar yc l in ic.com.au/ )  b rands. These a re dep loyed in both 
the communit y and hosp i ta l  mar ket secto r s .   Revenue f rom sa les 
to the Communit y Secto r was up 9% to $ 3 .74m la rge ly d r iven by 
the cont inu ing appeal of Maste rCare EMR fo r p rov ider s of Menta l 
Hea l th se r v ices w i th 19 new cus tomer o rgan i sat ions and over 5 0 0 
new hea l thcare p rofess iona l s .  P ro ject speci f ic p rofess iona l se r v ice 
expenses of approx imate ly $ 35 0 k were incu r red over the year fo r 
p ro jects expected to go - l i ve p r io r to 3 0 -June however the associated 
p ro jects have been de layed beyond the repor t ing per iod and a re 
now schedu led fo r go - l i ve in the September quar te r. 

SOLUTIONS

MASTERCARE EMR

An intu i t i ve team - based 
approach to c l ient management 
wh ich has p roven to be the 
per fect f i t  fo r gover nment and 
NGO se r v ice p rov ide r s i n the 
commun i t y. 

W i th a s t rong repo r t ing ped ig ree 
and sca lab le a rch i tectu re 
Maste r Ca re EMR he lps p rov ide r s 
wo r k w i th the i r  c l ient s to improve 
hea l th outcomes. 

Mas te r Ca re EMR i s  dep loyed in 
mu l t ip le s tate -w ide ro l l - out s , 
acros s mu l t ip le specia l t ies i n 
eve r y hea l thca re set t ing.

MASTERCARE DATA 
WAREHOUSE

A data wa rehouse that co l lates 
the la rge vo lume of bus ines s 
and c l in ica l data to enab le 
hea l thca re execut ives to 
ga in t ime ly in s ight s i nto the i r 
hea l thca re operat ions . 

Mas te r Ca re Data Wa rehouse 
p rov ides “s l ice - and - d ice” 
funct iona l i t y acros s a range 
of f i nancia l  and c l in ica l Key 
Pe r fo r mance Ind icato r s (KP I s)  to 
enab le in fo r med deci s ions and 
encou rage cont inuous qua l i t y 
improvement.
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Review of the fi nancial year to June 2017 (continued)

I n accordance w i th the Company’s po l icy,  wor k- in - p rog ress i s  not 
recogn i sed as revenue in the per iod incu r red. P ro ject se r v ices and 
l icense revenue f rom these w i l l  on ly recogn i sed on invo ic ing wh ich in 
these p ro jects a re on ly due on go - l i ve. The ef fect of these i s  a g reate r 
expense ref lected in the 2017 F inancia l  Year w i th the co r respond ing 
p ro ject revenue de layed to the 2018 F inancia l  Year.  The Company 
has increased inves tment in sa les and mar ket ing act iv i t y focused on 
Menta l Hea l th Se r v ices ,  Connect iv i t y and Consumer engagement. 
G iven the re lat ive ly long sa les - cycle in hea l th ca re, i t  was an 
impor tant inves tment to max im i se the l i ke l ihood of sus ta inab le 
revenue g row th in the medium -te r m fo r th i s  g row th a rea.

Revenue and marg ins f rom cus tomer s de l ive r ing se r v ices w i th in 
hosp i ta l s  has been f lat over the repor t ing per iod. The reduct ion in 
revenue i s  due to the c losu re of t wo hosp i ta l s  w i th in the cus tomer 
base and a de layed go - l ive of a fu r the r t wo new hosp i ta l  cus tomer s . 
Core subscr ipt ions in th i s  secto r a re fo r the use the Company’s 
Maste rCare PAS (Pat ient Admin i s t rat ion Sys tem) to manage pat ient 
wor k f low f rom pre - admis s ion th rough to d i scharge inc lud ing the 
management of beds, theat res ,  medica l records ,  b i l l i ng and 
receipt ing.

The Company has taken s teps to reduce the cos t base fo r the Hosp i ta l 
bus iness un i t  in the cu r rent per iod and accele rate the upg rade 
of Maste rCare PAS to the new Maste rCare+ p lat fo r m wh ich w i l l 
re -v i ta l i se the compet i t ive pos i t ion ing of ou r of fe r ing to hosp i ta l 
operato r s .  Maste rCare+ i s  a mu l t i - tenanted, “mobi le - f i r s t ”,  web based 
p lat fo r m & mar ketp lace wh ich i s  the successo r to ou r hea l thcare 
p rov ider p roducts inc lud ing Maste rCare EMR and PAS. 

Maste rCare+ featu res an ex tens ib le and modu la r des ign so cus tomer s 
on ly subscr ibe to featu res they need. The f i r s t  re lease addresses 
the Refe r ra l  Management needs of hea l thcare p rov ider s .  Du r ing 
the t rans i t ionar y per iod, revenue g row th fo r the acute secto r w i l l 
be der ived f rom add - ons such as the L i fecard Pat ient Po r ta l  and 
Maste rCare+ fo r Refe r ra l  Management to ex i s t ing cus tomer s .

SOLUTIONS

MASTERCARE PAS

A pat ient admin i s t rat ion 
sys tem fo r hosp i ta l 
admin i s t rato r s seek ing to 
s t reaml ine the pat ient jou rney 
w i th in the i r  fac i l i t y. 

Maste rCare PAS manages 
the revenue cycle f rom 
pre - admis s ion th rough to 
bed management,  theat re 
management, medica l 
records management and 
d i scharge p lann ing. 

P A SP A S

PRIMARYCLIN IC

A fu l l y featu red p ract ice 
and c l in ica l management 
sys tem to suppor t genera l 
p ract i t ioner s ,  specia l i s t s  and 
a l l ied hea l th p rov ider s in 
p r ivate p ract ice.



8

RE VI E W OF 
OPER AT ION S

D I RECTORS’ 
RE PORT

CORPOR ATE 
GOVE RNANCE 

STATEME NT

D I RECTORS’ 
DECL AR AT ION

AN NUAL 
F I NANCIAL 

RE PORT

SHARE HOLDE R 
I N FORM AT I ON

CORPOR ATE 
D I RECTORY

CONTE NT S

Review of the fi nancial year to June 2017 (continued)

 
I n the cu r rent f inancia l  year,  the focus i s  on deve lop ing d ig i ta l  hea l th communit ies th rough 
the newly re leased HotHea l th p lat fo r m (w w w.hothea l th.com), to encourage d ig i ta l 
engagement bet ween hea l thcare p rov ider s and the i r  hea l thcare consumer s .  Consumer s 
w i l l  be p rov ided w i th too l s to manage the i r  on - go ing hea l th cond i t ions th rough d ig i ta l 
inte ract ions w i th the i r  hea l thcare p rov ider s ,  and encouraged to p ro - act ive ly manage the i r 
hea l th and wel lness th rough the L i fecard Per sona l Hea l th Record (w w w. l i fecard.com). 

Over 3 0 0 0 hea l thcare o rgan i sat ions use G loba l Hea l th appl icat ions in hosp i ta l s ,  communit y 
and ch ron ic d i sease hea l th cent res ,  specia l i s t s ,  genera l  p ract ice and a l l ied hea l th .  Our 
coverage across the Aus t ra l ian hea l thcare indus t r y i s  es t imated at 12,0 0 0 ind iv idua l 
hea l thcare p rov ider s and i s  expected to g row at round 1,0 0 0 p rov ider s per annum in the near 
futu re, however,  on ly one th i rd of these a re pay ing subscr iber s when they come on board. 
One of the key d r ive r s fo r revenue g row th in the immediate futu re re l ies on the success fu l 
monet i sat ion of these f reemium subscr iber s .

By p rov id ing improved bus iness p roduct iv i t y and improved pat ient outcomes, the goa l 
i s  to increase the average revenue per cus tomer s .  Th i s  w i l l  be ach ieved th rough add - on 
appl icat ions and monet i sat ion of inte ract ions bet ween p rov ider s and the i r  c l ient s .  In the 
f i r s t  quar te r,  ou r new Maste rCare+ Sof t ware as a Se r v ice p lat fo r m w i l l  be l i ve w i th the in i t ia l 
re lease. Th i s  ex tends the Company’s sa les reach to the g loba l mar ketp lace w i th p rov ider, 
connect iv i t y,  consumer and d ig i ta l  engagement p lat fo r ms access ib le any where, any t ime and 
on any dev ice.

A ded icated Genera l  Manager fo r bus iness deve lopment across the ASE AN Reg ion has 
commenced to deve lop new over seas oppor tun i t ies fo r th i s  su i te of “mobi le - f i r s t ”,  c loud 
appl icat ions to “Connect Cl in ic ians and Consumer s”. 

W i th over 625 mi l l ion people in the ASE AN Reg ion and a rap id ly g row ing midd le c las s the 
Company be l ieves that ou r p roven p roducts can he lp improve the hea l thcare mar kets in 
these economies .

The las t 12 months has seen mar ket demand fo r address ing the sp i ra l l i ng cos t s of hea l thcare 
increase subs tant ia l l y.  Af te r 5 year s of p rof i tab le operat ions ,  the s t rengthened ba lance sheet 
has been t imely,  enab l ing the Company to increase ou r inves tment over the las t 9 months in:

Key sa les ,  mar ket ing and deve lopment per sonnel that have come on board; 
New mobi le appl icat ions and mar ketp lace p lat fo r ms, and,
E xpand ing ou r reach to the fas t deve lop ing hea l thcare mar ket in the ASE AN Reg ion. 

These inves tments w i l l  max im i se the oppor tun i t y to bu i ld a genu ine g loba l bus iness of sca le.

Enqu i r ies can be d i rected to Mathew Cher ian, Ch ief E xecut ive Of f ice r,  on +61 3 9675 068 8 o r 
a l te rnat ive ly by emai l  to mathew.cher ian@globa l - hea l th .com.

Fo r and on beha l f  of G loba l Hea l th L im i ted

Mathew Cher ian
Chie f Execut ive O f f ice r and Managing D i recto r
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2.   DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Your D i recto r s p resent the i r  repor t on G loba l Hea l th L im i ted and cont ro l led ent i t ies (‘Group’) 
fo r the f inancia l  year ended 3 0 June 2017.

2.1.   DIRECTORS

The names of the D i recto r s in of f ice at any t ime du r ing, o r s ince the end of,  the year a re:

Names Position
Steven L. Pynt Non-executive Chairman
Mathew Cherian Executive director
Grant Smith Non-executive director
Robert Knowles Non-executive director
Pattie Beerens Non-executive director (Appointed 1 December 2016)

D i recto r s have been in of f ice s ince the s ta r t  of the f inancia l  year to the date of th i s  repor t 
un les s other w i se s tated.

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
The sk i l l s ,  exper ience and exper t i se of each per son who i s  a D i recto r of the Company at the 
end of the f inancia l  year i s  p rov ided be low.

1. STEVEN L .  PYNT 

Qual i f icat ions
LLB, BBus ,  MBA, MTax  

Independent Non-Execut ive Chai rman

M r Pynt has been an independent non - execut ive d i recto r s ince 20 0 0 and Cha i r man s ince 
20 05. 

M r Pynt i s  Lega l D i recto r of Muz z Buz z F ranch i s ing Pt y Ltd, a d r ive th rough cof fee s to re 
f ranch i so r.

M r Pynt i s  a l so a D i recto r of the Per th lega l f i r m, Thompson Pynt,  and h i s  ma in a rea of p ract ice 
i s  in commercia l  law inc lud ing corporat ions’ law, f ranch i s ing and cont racts .  He i s  a member 
of the Aus t ra l ian Ins t i tute of Company D i recto r s and was fo r mer ly a member of the Racing 
Pena l t ies Appeal s Tr ibuna l and Cha i r man of the Commercia l  Tr ibuna l of WA.
 
Other L i s ted Company Cur rent D i recto rsh ips 
Eph ra im Resou rces L im i ted
Gondwana Resou rces L im i ted

Fo rmer D i recto rsh ips in the las t  3 years p r io r to the cu r rent year 
Richf ie ld Inte rnat iona l L im i ted

Specia l Respons ib i l i t ies
Chai r man of the Board
Member of Aud i t  Commit tee 



11

RE VI E W OF 
OPER AT ION S

D I RECTORS’ 
RE PORT

CORPOR ATE 
GOVE RNANCE 

STATEME NT

D I RECTORS’ 
DECL AR AT ION

AN NUAL 
F I NANCIAL 

RE PORT

SHARE HOLDE R 
I N FORM AT I ON

CORPOR ATE 
D I RECTORY

CONTE NT S

2 . MATHEW CHERIAN 

Qual i f icat ions
BBus ( I S/ I T ),  MAC S, MAICD  
 
Chie f Execut ive O f f ice r

M r Cher ian has been in the info r mat ion techno logy indus t r y s ince 1981. In 1985 he es tab l i shed 
Wor k ing Sys tems Pt y Ltd in Pe r th,  Weste rn Aus t ra l ia . 

M r Cher ian was appointed CEO of Wor k ing Sys tems So lut ions L im i ted in Januar y 20 02, to re -
focus the Group as a sof t ware p roduct deve loper fo r the Hea l thcare secto r.   The in i t ia l  phase 
cu lm inated w i th the re - b rand ing of the Company as G loba l Hea l th L im i ted in December 20 07. 

M r Cher ian p lays an act ive ro le in p roduct s t rategy and the deve lopment of over seas mar kets 
fo r the Company.

Other Cur rent D i recto rsh ips
None

Fo rmer D i recto rsh ips in the las t  3 years p r io r to the cu r rent year
None

Specia l Respons ib i l i t ies
Managing D i recto r
 

3. GRANT SMITH

Qual i f icat ions
BComm, A AIM, AS IA   

Independent Non-Execut ive D i recto r

M r Smith has wor ked in insu rance, superannuat ion, inves tment and funds management fo r 
over 4 0 year s .  He s ta r ted w i th Nat iona l Mutua l (now AMP) in the inves tments d iv i s ion and was 
respons ib le fo r the es tab l i shment of the funds management bus iness fo r Nat iona l Mutua l . 

In 198 4 he es tab l i shed an independent funds management g roup and f loated Hosp i ta l s  of 
Aus t ra l ia -  the f i r s t  hea l thcare inves tment fund in Aus t ra l ia .  Hosp i ta l s  of Aus t ra l ia owned and 
operated a number of hosp i ta l s  th roughout Aus t ra l ia . 

M r Smith was int imate ly invo lved in the bu i ld ing of a number of hosp i ta l s  inc lud ing St rathf ie ld 
p r ivate, Southern H igh lands P r ivate Hosp i ta l ,  Po r t  Macquar ie Hosp i ta l  and the refu rb i shment 
of a number of other hea l thcare faci l i t ies .  Hosp i ta l s  of Aus t ra l ia was u l t imate ly acqu i red by 
Mayne N ick les s L im i ted.
 
In the past 15 year s M r Smith deve loped and bu i l t  the Medica Cent re and opened the f i r s t 
d ig i ta l  (paper les s)  p r ivate su rg ica l hosp i ta l  in Aus t ra l ia .  He i s  cu r rent ly invo lved in deve lop ing 
new hosp i ta l s  in Melbourne. M r Smith i s  a l so invo lved in ut i l i s i ng d ig i ta l  techno logy to 
generate increased p roduct iv i t y and ef f ic iencies fo r the hea l thcare secto r.

Other L i s ted Company Cur rent D i recto rsh ips
None



12

RE VI E W OF 
OPER AT ION S

D I RECTORS’ 
RE PORT

CORPOR ATE 
GOVE RNANCE 

STATEME NT

D I RECTORS’ 
DECL AR AT ION

AN NUAL 
F I NANCIAL 

RE PORT

SHARE HOLDE R 
I N FORM AT I ON

CORPOR ATE 
D I RECTORY

CONTE NT S

            
Fo rmer D i recto rsh ips in the las t  3 years p r io r to the cu r rent year 
None

Specia l Respons ib i l i t ies
Member of Aud i t  Commit tee

4. ROBERT KNOWLES 

Qual i f icat ions
MAICD AO 

Independent Non-Execut ive D i recto r
 
M r Knowles i s  a fa r mer and company d i recto r.  He i s  a d i recto r of the S i l ve r Cha in Group of 
Companies ,  I PG Pt y Ltd, D r ink w i se Aus t ra l ia Ltd and St John of God Hea l thcare Ltd. 

He i s  a l so a Commis s ioner w i th the Nat iona l Menta l Hea l th Commis s ion and Cha i r  of the 
Roya l Ch i ld ren’s Hosp i ta l .  M r Knowles was V icto r ian M in i s te r fo r Hea l th f rom 1996 unt i l  1999 
and a member of the V icto r ian Leg i s lat ive Counci l  f rom 1976 -1999. He has a l so se r ved as 
Cha i r man of Food Standards Aus t ra l ia and New Zea land and as an Aged Care Compla int s 
Commis s ioner.

Other L i s ted Company Cur rent D i recto rsh ips
None
             
Fo rmer D i recto rsh ips in the las t  3 years p r io r to the cu r rent year 
None

Specia l Respons ib i l i t ies
None

5. PAT T IE BEERENS

Qual i f icat ions
LLBcom, GAICD

Independent Non-Execut ive D i recto r

Ms Beerens has wor ked in the hea l th ca re secto r fo r over 20 year s and as the CEO of t wo 
nat iona l hea l th secto r indus t r y as sociat ions fo r over 12 year s .  Her ea r ly ca reer was as a 
commercia l  so l ic i to r and late r on as Company Secreta r y and Genera l  Manager Lega l fo r 
McEwans L im i ted in 1991.
 
Ms Beerens es tab l i shed and launched Aust ra l ia’s f i r s t  hea l th on ly phar macy f ranch i se in 
1998 fo r Fau ld ing L im i ted and, as Genera l  Manager fo r Mayne Group L im i ted fo l low ing the 
acqu i s i t ion, managed phar macy sys tems operat ions and government re lat ions .  In 20 05, as 
E xecut ive D i recto r of the Nat iona l Phar maceut ica l Se r v ices Associat ion, Ms Beerens led the 
es tab l i shment of the Communit y Se r v ice Obl igat ion (a Federa l  Government in i t iat ive) wh ich 
recogn i sed the impor tance of t imely pat ient access ,  to medic ines across Aus t ra l ia .  The C SO 
commenced in 20 05 and cont inues today to suppor t access to medic ines in r u ra l  Aus t ra l ia .
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Ms Beerens has an ongoing ro le as CEO of the Aus t ra l ian D iagnost ic Imag ing Associat ion and 
negot iated the recent ly announced agreement w i th the Federa l  Government on the p lan fo r 
access to af fo rdab le d iagnost ic imag ing fo r a l l  Aus t ra l ians .

Other L i s ted Company Cur rent D i recto rsh ips
None
             
Fo rmer D i recto rsh ips in the las t  3 years p r io r to the cu r rent year 
None

Specia l Respons ib i l i t ies
None

2.2.   COMPANY SECRETARY

Peter Cur ig l iano he ld the pos i t ion of Company Secreta r y f rom October 20 05 unt i l 
h i s  res ignat ion and depar tu re f rom Globa l Hea l th in December 2016. M r Steven Pynt 
( Independent D i recto r and Cha i r man) was appointed as company secreta r y on an inte r im 
bas i s  ef fect ive f rom 11 Januar y 2017 fo l low ing Pete r’s depar tu re. 

M r G lenn Fowles [BBus (Account ing)] was appointed as company secreta r y ef fect ive on 
21 Febr uar y 2017. M r Fow les was p rev ious ly Company Secreta r y of ASX l i s ted companies , 
Contango MicroCap L im i ted and Contango Income Generato r L im i ted. The company 
secreta r y i s  respons ib le fo r the Company’s cont inuous d i sc losu re requ i rements ,  p reparat ion of 
the Annua l Repor t,  Annua l Genera l Meet ings and announcements to the sha re mar ket.

2 .3.   MEETING OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

The number of meet ings of the Company’s Board of D i recto r s and of each Aud i t  commit tee 
he ld, whereby member s cou ld at tend in the i r  capaci t y du r ing the year ended 3 0 June 2017, 
and the number of meet ings at tended by each D i recto r were:

Directors Meetings Audit  Committee Meetings

Number of 
Meetings 
Attended

Number of 
Meetings el igible 

to attend

Number of 
Meetings 
Attended

Number of 
Meetings 

el igible to 
attend

Mr M Cherian 6 6 - -

Mr S L Pynt 6 6 1 1

Mr G Smith 6 6 1 1

Mr R Knowles 6 6 - -

Ms P Beerens 2 2 - -
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2 .4.   DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
Relevant inte res t s of the D i recto r s and the i r  c lose ly re lated par t ies in the sha res of the 
Company at the date of th i s  repor t a re:

Ordinary Shares Options
Mr M Cherian 18,619,370  150,0001

Mr S L Pynt 257,408  200,0002

Mr G Smith 300,000  100,0002

Mr R Knowles 20,000  100,0002

Ms P Beerens 22,000 -

Total 19,218,778 550,000

1  Options through a related party, Kye Cherian

2  400,000 options were approved for issue to directors at the 2016 AGM

2.5.   PRINCIPAL ACTIVIT IES
Dur ing the year the p r inc ipa l act iv i t ies of the Group cons i s ted of :

1.  the deve lopment,  sa les and suppor t of app l icat ion sof t ware fo r the hea l thcare secto r ; 
and

2. the deve lopment of sys tems integ rat ion sof t ware that enables data to be secure ly 
exchanged bet ween mul t ip le,  d i sparate appl icat ions w i th in an ente rp r i se and across the 
hea l thcare va lue cha in.

2 .6.   RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

2.6.1.  OPERATING RESULTS
The p rof i t  of the Group fo r the f inancia l  year af te r p rov id ing fo r income tax and e l im inat ing 
non - cont ro l l i ng equ i t y inte res t s amounted to $1,728,04 5 (2016 res tated: $107,94 5).

2.6.2.  DIVIDENDS
Dur ing the f inancia l  year ended 3 0 June 2017, the Company decla red and pa id t wo specia l 
d iv idends of 1 cent per sha re each. Deta i l s  of d iv idends pa id a re d i sc losed in note 29 of the 
f inancia l  s tatements .

2 .7.   REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Info r mat ion on the operat ions and f inancia l  pos i t ion of the Group and i t s  bus iness s t rateg ies 
and p rospects i s  set out in the ‘Ch ief E xecut ive Of f ice r’s Operat ions Repor t’  sect ion of th i s 
Annua l Repor t.

2 .8.   S IGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
There a re no s ign i f icant changes in the s tate of af fa i r s  of the Group du r ing the f inancia l  year 
ended 3 0 June 2017 and up to the date of th i s  repor t.

2 .9.   S IGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
There have been no s ign i f icant events af te r repor t ing date.
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2 .10.   L IKELY DEVELOPMENTS
The Group w i l l  cont inue to pu r sue i t s  po l icy of increas ing the p rof i tab i l i t y and mar ket sha re of 
i t s  majo r bus iness secto r s du r ing the nex t f inancia l  year.

2 .11.   SHARE OPTIONS
At the date of th i s  repor t,  the un l i s ted o rd ina r y sha res of G loba l Hea l th L im i ted under opt ion 
a re:

Date of Issue Date of Expiry
Exercise 
Pr ice per 

option 
Number Under 

Option*

19 December 2013 19 December 2017 $0.65 530,000

26 May 2014 26 May 2019 $0.75 300,000

10 June 2016 10 June 2020 $0.65 310,000

19 December 2016 30 November 2019 $0.75 400,000

19 December 2016 30 November 2021 $0.75 600,000

2,140,000

*Option holders do not have any rights to participate in any issues of shares or other interests of the company or any other entity. All options were issued by 

Global Health Limited and entitled the holder to one ordinary share in Global Health Limited for each option exercised.

Dur ing the year ended 3 0 June 2017, the fo l low ing events occur red:
• 4 0 0,0 0 0 opt ions w i th an exerc i se p r ice of $ 0.75 exp i r ing on 3 0 November 2019 were i s sued
• 60 0,0 0 0 opt ions w i th an exerc i se p r ice of $ 0.75 exp i r ing on 3 0 November 2021 were i s sued
• 3 0 0,0 0 0 opt ions w i th an exerc i se p r ice of $ 0.15 exp i r ing on 5 Ju ly 2018 were exerc i sed
• 8 0,0 0 0 opt ions w i th an exerc i se p r ice of $ 0.65 exp i r ing on the10 June 2020 were fo r fe i ted

For deta i l s  of opt ions i s sued to d i recto r s and execut ives as remunerat ion, refe r to the 
remunerat ion repor t.

2 .12.   REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

2.12.1.  PRINCIPLES USED TO DETERMINE THE NATURE AND AMOUNT OF 
REMUNERATION 

Remunerat ion of D i recto r s and key management per sonnel of the Company i s  es tab l i shed 
by the Board. Remunerat ion i s  dete r mined as par t of an annua l per fo r mance rev iew, hav ing 
regard to mar ket facto r s and a per fo r mance eva luat ion p rocess .  The remunerat ion f ramewor k 
i s  des igned to a l ign execut ive reward w i th ach ievement of s t rateg ic ob ject ives and the 
creat ion of va lue fo r sha reho lder s ,  and confo r ms to mar ket bes t p ract ice fo r de l ive r y of 
reward.  Fo r D i recto r s and execut ives ,  remunerat ion packages genera l l y compr i se sa la r y 
and superannuat ion.  E xecut ives a re a l so p rov ided w i th longer- te r m incent ives th rough the 
employee sha re and sha re opt ion schemes, wh ich act to a l ign the execut ive’s act ions w i th 
the inte res t s of the sha reho lder s .   Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s a re not ent i t led to per fo r mance -
based bonuses .

The Board meets annua l ly to rev iew i t s  own per fo r mance.  The Cha i r man a l so ho lds ind iv idua l 
d i scuss ions w i th each D i recto r to d i scuss the i r  per fo r mance.  The Non - execut ive D i recto r s 
a re respons ib le fo r eva luat ing the per fo r mance of the Ch ief E xecut ive Of f ice r,  who in tu rn 
eva luates the per fo r mance of a l l  other sen io r execut ives . 
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PERFORMANCE BASED REMUNERATION

Per fo r mance based remunerat ion i s  eva luated based on speci f ic c r i te r ia,  inc lud ing the 
Group’s bus iness per fo r mance and ach ievement of tu rnover and NPAT (Net P rof i t  Af te r Tax) 
ta rgets ,  whether long -te r m s t rateg ic ob ject ives a re be ing ach ieved and the ach ievement of 
ind iv idua l per fo r mance object ives .

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN REMUNERATION AND COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The remunerat ion p r inc ip les a re ta i lo red to increase goa l cong r uence bet ween sha reho lder s , 
d i recto r s and execut ives .  Two methods have been appl ied to ach ieve th i s  a im, the f i r s t  be ing 
a per fo r mance bonus based on KPI s ,  and the second being the i s sue of opt ions to d i recto r s 
and execut ives to encourage the a l ignment of per sona l and sha reho lder inte res t s .  There i s  no 
fo r mal po l icy l i nk ing remunerat ion and the company’s per fo r mance.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Fees and payments to Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s ref lect the demands wh ich a re made on, 
and the respons ib i l i t ies of,  the D i recto r s .   Non - execut ive D i recto r s’  fees and payments a re 
rev iewed annua l ly by the Board to ensu re a l l  payments a re appropr iate and in l i ne w i th 
the mar ket.  The max imum amount of remunerat ion as dete r mined by sha reho lder s at the 
Company’s Annua l Genera l  Meet ing on 24 November 20 09 i s  $ 35 0,0 0 0 per annum wh ich may 
be d iv ided among Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s in the manner dete r mined by the Board f rom t ime 
to t ime.  The Cha i r man’s fees a re dete r mined independent ly to the fees of Non - E xecut ive 
D i recto r s based on comparat ive ro les in s im i la r s i zed companies and secto r s in the ex te rna l 
mar ket.   The Cha i r man i s  not p resent at any d i scuss ions re lat ing to dete r minat ion of h i s  own 
remunerat ion. There were no remunerat ion consu l tants used du r ing the year.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The E xecut ive D i recto r s’  sa la r y and cond i t ions a re dete r mined by the Board of D i recto r s and 
rev iewed at the exp i r y of each cont ract per iod.

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION 

E xecut ives a re of fe red a compet i t ive base pay that compr i ses the f i xed component of pay 
and rewards .   Base pay fo r sen io r execut ives i s  rev iewed annua l ly to ensu re the execut ive’s 
pay i s  compet i t ive w i th the mar ket.   The re a re no guaranteed base pay increases inc luded in 
any sen io r execut ive’s cont ract.

2.12.2.  DETAILS OF REMUNERATION

Deta i l s  of the remunerat ion of the D i recto r s and the key management per sonnel of G loba l 
Hea l th L im i ted a re set out in the fo l low ing tab le:
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2017 Short-Term 
benefi ts

Performance 
related

Post-
Employment 

Benefi ts

Other 
long term 
benefi ts

Share-
based 

Payment

Name
Salary and 

or Fees
$

Bonus
$

Superannuation

$

Accrued 
Long 

Service 
Leave

$

Shares
$

Total
$

Proport ion of 
Remuneration 

that is 
performance 

based
%

Directors:

Mr S L Pynt 41,284 - 3,922 - 9,432 54,638 -

Mr M Cherian 269,034 - 33,381 4,189 - 306,604 -

Mr G Smith 32,037 - 3,043 - 4,716 39,796 -

Mr R Knowles 32,037 - 3,043 - 4,716 39,796 -

MS P 
Beerens1

18,645 - 1,771 - - 20,416 -

Key Management Personnel:
Mr P 
Curigliano 2

140,044 - 20,820 - - 160,864 -

Mr K 
Jayesuria

120,580 - 35,370 2,435 16,002 174,387 -

TOTAL 653,661 - 101,350 6,624 34,866 796,501 -
 

1 appointed 1 December 2016

2 resigned  28 December 2016 

There have been no changes in D i recto r s and E xecut ives subsequent to year end.

2016 Short-Term 
benefi ts

Performance 
related

Post-
Employment 

Benefi ts

Other 
long term 
benefi ts

Share-
based 

Payment

Name
Salary and 

or Fees
$

Bonus
$

Superannuation
$

Accrued 
Long 

Service 
Leave

$

Shares
$

Total
$

Proport ion of 
Remuneration 

that is 
performance 

based
%

Directors:

Mr S L Pynt 41,284 - 3,922 - - 45,206 -

Mr M Cherian 290,339 - 24,799 4,199 - 319,337 -

Mr G Smith 32,037 - 3,043 - - 35,080 -

Mr R Knowles 32,037 - 3,043 - - 35,080 -

Key Management Personnel:
Mr P 
Curigliano

156,328 - 16,292 2,758 - 175,378
-

Mr K 
Jayesuria

137,513 - 13,064 - - 150,577
-

TOTAL 689,538 - 64,163 6,957 - 760,658 -
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2.12.3.  SERVICE AGREEMENTS 
Remunerat ion and other te r ms of employment fo r key management per sonnel a re fo r mal i sed 
in se r v ice ag reements .   I t  i s  Company po l icy that employment cont racts conta in p rov i s ions 
fo r te r minat ion w i th not ice o r payment in l ieu thereof and fo r te r minat ion by the Company 
w i thout not ice fo r se r ious m i sconduct and b reach of cont ract.  The Manag ing D i recto r 
i s  ent i t led to receive a te r minat ion payment in add i t ion to not ice where the Company 
te r minates employment on g rounds of i l l nes s o r incapaci t y.

The not ice per iod requ i red to be g iven by the employee o r the Company a long w i th any 
te r minat ion payments a re set out in the tab le be low.

Notice period by 
Company

Notice period by 
Employee

Termination 
Payments

Managing Director
     Mr M Cherian 6 months 6 months 6 months*

Technology Delivery Manager

     Mr K Jayesuria 1 month 1 month None

* if termination is by reason of the employee’s illness or incapacity.

2.12.4.  INTERESTS IN SHARES AND OPTIONS

SHARES
The inte res t of D i recto r s and the i r  re lated ent i t ies in sha res of the Company as at 3 0 June 2017 
a re:

Total 
number of 

shares
Number of shares 

sold
Number of shares 

acquired

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Mr M Cherian 18,619,370 18,619,370 - - - -

Mr S L Pynt 257,408 232,408 - - 25,000 -

Mr G Smith 300,000 300,000 - - - 20,000

Mr R Knowles 20,000 20,000 - - - -

Ms P Beerens 22,000 - - - 22,000 -

19,218,778 19,171,778 - - 47,000 20,000

Di recto r s rece ived d iv idends f rom the i r  sha reho ld ings in the no r mal cour se of d iv idend 
payments by the Company – refe r to note 29 fo r deta i l s  of d iv idends pa id.
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OPTIONS
The inte res t s of D i recto r s and the i r  re lated ent i t ies in opt ions of the Company as at 3 0 June 
2017 a re:

Total number of 
options

Number of option 
granted during the 

year

Number 
of options 
exercised 

during 
the year

Number 
of Options 

vested/ 
exercisable 

at report 
date

Number 
of 

Options 
unvested 
at report 

date

Option 
type 

(Listed / 
Unlisted)

Exercise 
price per 
Option 

($)

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2017 2017
Mr M 
Cherian1

150,000 150,000 - - - 150,000 -
Unlisted $0.65

Mr S L Pynt 200,000 - 200,000 - - 66,667 133,333 Unlisted $0.75

Mr G Smith 100,000 - 100,000 - - 33,337 66,663 Unlisted $0.75

Mr R Knowles 100,000 - 100,000 - - 33,337 66,663 Unlisted $0.75

Ms P Beerens - - - - - - - Unlisted $0.75

550,000 150,000 400,000 - - 283,341 266,659 -

1  Options through a related party, Kye Cherian

2.12.5.  LOANS TO KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

There were no loans advanced to key management per sonnel du r ing the year.

2.12.6.  OTHER TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

There were no other t ransact ions conducted bet ween the Group and KMP o r the i r  re lated 
par t ies ,  apar t f rom those d i sc losed above re lat ing to equ i t y,  compensat ion and loans,  that 
were conducted other than in accordance w i th no r mal employee, cus tomer o r supp l ie r 
re lat ionsh ips on te r ms no more favourab le than those reasonably expected under a r m’s 
length dea l ings w i th un re lated per sons .

-- End of audited remuneration report –
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2 .13.   INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES OR 
AUDITORS

Dur ing o r s ince the end of the f inancia l  year,  the Group has not,  in any respect fo r any per son 
who i s  o r has been an of f ice r o r d i recto r of the parent ent i t y o r a re lated body corporate, 
indemni f ied o r made any re levant ag reement fo r indemni f y ing aga ins t a l iab i l i t y,  inc lud ing 
cos t s and expenses in success fu l l y defend ing lega l p roceedings .

Du r ing o r s ince the end of the f inancia l  year the Group has pa id p remiums in respect of a 
cont ract insu r ing the D i recto r s and of f ice r s of a l l  compan ies in the Group aga ins t a l iab i l i t y 
incu r red in the i r  ro le as D i recto r s and of f ice r s of a l l  compan ies w i th in the Group except 
where:
i .  The l iab i l i t y a r i ses out of conduct invo lv ing a w i l fu l  b reach of dut y ;  o r
i i .  The re has been a cont ravent ion of Sect ions 232(5) o r (6) of the Corporat ions Act 20 01.

The tota l  amount of p remiums pa id by the Group fo r D i recto r s and Of f ice r s L iab i l i t y Insu rance 
was $13,610 (2016: $13,60 8).

2 .14.   PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY

On 2 August 2016 the Company, i t s  subs id ia r y Wor k ing Sys tems Sof t ware Pt y Ltd and SA Hea l th 
reached set t lement regard ing SA Hea l th’s cont inu ing use of CH IRON sof t ware. Deta i l s  of the 
set t lement were re leased to ASX on 4 August 2016.

Fu r ther t reatment of th i s  i tem i s  deta i led in Note 1(v) “Res tatement of P r io r  Pe r iod i tem” of 
these f inancia l  s tatements .

2 .15.   NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The Company’s aud i to r,  Sh ineWing Aus t ra l ia,  has not p rov ided any non - aud i t  o r as su rance 
se r v ices to the Company. Deta i l s  of amounts pa id fo r the i r  s tatuto r y aud i t  dut ies a re deta i led 
in Note 23 .

2.16.   ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

As the operat ions of the Group a re l im i ted to computer sof t ware deve lopment and suppor t 
and p rofess iona l consu l t ing se r v ices ,  the Group has m in imal invo lvement in and exposu re to 
env i ronmenta l r i sk s and i s sues .   The Group i s  not requ i red to comply w i th any speci f ic Act. 

2 .17.   CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In recogn i s ing the need fo r the h ighest s tandards of co rporate behav iou r and accountab i l i t y, 
the D i recto r s of the Company suppor t and have adhered to the p r inc ip les to the ex tent 
out l ined in the Corporate Governance Statement.  The Company’s Corporate Governance 
Statement i s  conta ined in a separate sect ion of th i s  Annua l Repor t.
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2 .18.   AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the Aud i to r s’  Independence Decla rat ion as requ i red under sect ion 3 07C of the 
Corporat ions Act 20 01 accompanies and fo r ms par t of th i s  repor t.

S igned in accordance w i th a reso lut ion of the D i recto r s .

Steven Le igh Pynt
Non-Execut ive Chai rman
Melbourne, 27 September 2 017



3. 

ShineWing Australia ABN 39 533 589 331. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. ShineWing Australia is an independent member of ShineWing 
International Limited – members in principal cities throughout the world.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 
2001 to the directors of Global Health Ltd and Controlled Entities

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2017 there have been:

(i) No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation 
to the audit, and

(ii) No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

ShineWing Australia 
Chartered Accountants

Nick Michael
Partner

Melbourne, 28 September 2017
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4.    CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Global Hea l th L im i ted (the Company) and the Board a re commit ted to ach iev ing and 
demonst rat ing the h ighest s tandards of co rporate governance. Accord ing ly,  un les s s tated 
other w i se in th i s  document,  the Board’s co rporate governance a r rangements comply w i th 
the recommendat ions of the ASX Corporate Governance Counci l  (2014 – Ver s ion 3) as wel l  as 
cu r rent s tandards of bes t p ract ice fo r the ent i re f inancia l  year ended 3 0 June 2017.

The Company and i t s  cont ro l led ent i t ies together a re refe r red to as the Group in th i s 
s tatement.

The Board of D i recto r s of the Company i s  respons ib le fo r the co rporate governance of the 
Group.  The D i recto r s a re respons ib le to the sha reho lder s fo r the per fo r mance of the Group 
in both the sho r t and the longer te r m and seek to ba lance somet imes compet ing ob ject ives 
in the bes t inte res t s of the Group as a who le.  The Board i s  a l so respons ib le fo r set t ing the 
s t rateg ic d i rect ion and es tab l i sh ing the po l ic ies of the Group.  The focus i s  to enhance the 
inte res t s of sha reho lder s and other key s takeho lder s and to ensu re the Group i s  p roper ly 
managed.

Day to day management of the Group’s af fa i r s  and the implementat ion of the co rporate 
s t rategy and po l icy in i t iat ives a re fo r mal ly de legated by the Board to the Ch ief E xecut ive 
Of f ice r and sen io r execut ives .

A descr ipt ion of the Company’s main co rporate governance p ract ices i s  set out be low. A l l 
these p ract ices ,  un les s other w i se s tated, were in p lace fo r the ent i re year.

ETHICAL STANDARDS
The Board i s  commit ted to i t s  co re governance va lues of integ r i t y,  respect,  t r us t  and openness 
among and bet ween board member s ,  management, employees, cus tomer s and supp l ie r s . 
These va lues a re ensh r ined in the Board’s Code of Conduct po l icy.

The Code of Conduct Po l icy,  requ i res a l l  d i recto r s ,  management and employees at a l l  t imes 
to:
act honest ly and in good fa i th;

 - exe rc i se due care and d i l igence in fu l f i l l i ng the funct ions of of f ice;
 - avo id conf l ict s and make fu l l  d i sc losu re of any poss ib le conf l ict of inte res t ;
 - comply w i th both the let te r and sp i r i t  of the law;
 - encourage the repor t ing and inves t igat ion of un law fu l  and uneth ica l behav iou r ;  and
 - comply w i th the sha re t rad ing po l icy out l ined in the Code of Conduct.

D i recto r s a re ob l iged to be independent in judgment and ensu re a l l  reasonable s teps 
a re taken to ensu re that the Board’s co re governance va lues a re not compromised in any 
deci s ions the Board makes .

DIVERSITY POLICY
Diver s i t y inc ludes, but i s  not l im i ted to, gender,  age, ethn ic i t y and cu l tu ra l  backg round. The 
Company i s  commit ted to d ive r s i t y and recogn i ses the benef i t s  a r i s ing f rom employee and 
Board d ive r s i t y and the impor tance of benef i t ing f rom a l l  ava i lab le ta lent. 
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The po l icy out l ines requ i rements fo r the Board to deve lop measu rab le ob ject ives fo r ach iev ing 
d ive r s i t y,  and annua l ly as sess both ob ject ives and the p rog ress in ach iev ing those ob ject ives .  
A s D i recto r and sen io r execut ive pos i t ions become vacant and appropr iate ly qua l i f ied 
cand idates become ava i lab le, the Board has deve loped the fo l low ing ob ject ives:

ach ieve a d ive r se and sk i l led wor k fo rce lead ing to cont inuous improvement;
 -  the deve lopment of c lea r c r i te r ia fo r behav iou ra l  expectat ions in re lat ion to p romot ing 
d ive r s i t y in the wor k env i ronment;
 -  ensu re that per sonnel respons ib le fo r recr u i tment take d ive r s i t y i s sues into account when 
cons ider ing vacancies;
 -  c reate a wor k env i ronment that va lues and ut i l i ses the cont r ibut ions of employees w i th 
d ive r se backg rounds, exper iences and per spect ives;  and
 -  c reate awareness in a l l  employees of the i r  r ight s and respons ib i l i t ies w i th regards to 
fa i rness ,  equ i t y and respect fo r a l l  aspects of d ive r s i t y.

The Board be l ieves i t  has implemented these ob ject ives th roughout the Company’s wor k fo rce 
and cont inues to mon i to r and assess the Company’s ef fo r t s  in th i s  regard.

The number of women employed by the Company and the i r  employment c las s i f icat ions a re as 
fo l lows:

2017 2016
Number Percentage Number Percentage

Women on the Board 1 20% - 0%

Women in Senior Management - 0% - 0%

Women employees in the Company 14 35% 13 40%

4.1.   COMPOSIT ION OF THE BOARD

There were f ive d i recto r s on the Board at any one t ime th roughout the year.  Of these, fou r 
were non - execut ive d i recto r s and one was an execut ive d i recto r – the lat te r be ing the 
Manag ing D i recto r/Ch ief E xecut ive Of f ice r.  Each year one -th i rd of d i recto r s and any d i recto r 
(exc lud ing the Manag ing D i recto r) who has he ld of f ice fo r th ree year s o r th ree annua l 
genera l  meet ings (wh ichever i s  longer) must ret i re f rom of f ice.  A ret i r i ng d i recto r i s  e l ig ib le 
to seek re - e lect ion i f  so m inded. The sk i l l s ,  exper ience and exper t i se re levant to the pos i t ion 
of each d i recto r who i s  in of f ice at the date of the Annua l Repor t and the i r  te r m of of f ice a re 
deta i led in the D i recto r s’  Repor t.  The Board s t r ives to ach ieve a mix of commercia l ,  f i nancia l , 
lega l ,  management,  hea l th indus t r y and I T  sk i l l s  and exper ience among i t s  member s .

The compos i t ion of the Board i s  dete r mined in accordance w i th the fo l low ing p r inc ip les and 
gu ide l ines:
• the Board shou ld compr i se at leas t th ree D i recto r s and shou ld mainta in a majo r i t y of 

independent and Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s ;
• the Cha i r man must be an independent and Non - E xecut ive D i recto r ;
• the ro les of Ch ief E xecut ive Of f ice r and Cha i r man must not be per fo r med by the same 

ind iv idua l;
• the Board shou ld compr i se D i recto r s w i th an appropr iate range of qua l i f icat ions and 

exper t i se;  and
• the Board sha l l  meet regu la r ly and have ava i lab le a l l  necessa r y info r mat ion to 

par t ic ipate in an info r med d i scuss ion of a l l  agenda i tems.
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When cons ider ing potent ia l  cand idates fo r d i recto r sh ip, the Board assesses qua l i f ied 
p rofess iona l s and exper ienced bus iness people in indus t r y.  The Company does not engage 
any consu l tants to sou rce potent ia l  Board member s ,  but re l ies on the D i recto r s’  indus t r y 
contacts to ident i f y potent ia l  cand idates based on an ind iv idua l’s  p rofess iona l and bus iness 
reputat ion, hea l th ca re se r v ices indus t r y exper ience and other a reas of exper t i se.  The 
Company seek s to mainta in a d ive r se range of member s of the Board by hav ing on ly one 
d i recto r d rawn f rom any one p rofess iona l backg round at any one t ime.

4.2.   BOARD MEMBERS 

The D i recto r s in of f ice at the date of th i s  s tatement a re:

Name Posit ion
Mr S L Pynt Non-Executive Chairman

Mr M Cherian Chief Executive Offi cer and Managing Director

Mr G Smith Non-Executive Director

Mr R Knowles AO Non-Executive Director

Ms P Beerens Non-Executive Director

There a re fou r Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s who a re deemed independent under the p r inc ip les set 
out be low, and one E xecut ive D i recto r,  at the date of s ign ing the D i recto r s’  Repor t. 

The Board seek s to ensu re that :
at any po int in t ime, i t s  member sh ip represents an appropr iate ba lance bet ween D i recto r s 
w i th exper ience and knowledge of the Group and D i recto r s w i th an ex te rna l o r f resh 
per spect ive; and 
the s i ze of the Board i s  conducive to ef fect ive d i scuss ion and ef f ic ient deci s ion - mak ing.

As a Board, the D i recto r s need to p rov ide the fo l low ing sk i l l s  and knowledge:
• a ba lance of p roven exper t i se,  d ive r se sk i l l s  and exper ience in commerce, f inance, hea l th 

ca re innovat ion and other a reas where sof t ware techno logy can improve the exper ience 
of consumer s and p rov ider s of hea l th ca re se r v ices;

• under s tand ing of the ro les ,  dut ies and respons ib i l i t ies of d i recto r s under the Corporat ions 
Act ;

• leader sh ip sk i l l s ,  exper ience mak ing deci s ions at the h ighest leve l s ,  s t rateg ic th ink ing and 
long -te r m p lann ing abi l i t ies ;

• an under s tand ing of cu r rent i s sues af fect ing the Aus t ra l ian hea l th ca re indus t r y 
in par t icu la r,  and in genera l  a w ider under s tand ing of inte rnat iona l medica l and 
techno log ica l t rends in hea l th ca re p rov i s ion and consumpt ion;

• f lex ib le, consu l tat ive and innovat ive approaches to communicat ing and ach iev ing 
corporate goa l s ;  and

• a pass ion fo r and s t rong commitment to the success of the act iv i t ies of G loba l Hea l th 
L im i ted.

As G loba l Hea l th L im i ted has a re lat ive ly smal l  Board, the fu l l  Board acts as a nominat ion 
commit tee and rev iews Board member sh ips inc lud ing an assessment of necessa r y and 
des i rab le competencies ,  pa r t icu la r ly in cons iderat ion of appointments and removal s . 
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4 .3.   BOARD RESPONSIBIL IT IES 

The respons ib i l i t ies of the Board inc lude:

1.  p rov id ing s t rateg ic gu idance to the Company inc lud ing cont r ibut ing to the deve lopment 
of and approv ing the co rporate s t rategy;

2.  rev iew ing and approv ing bus iness p lans ,  the annua l budget and f inancia l  p lans inc lud ing 
ava i lab le resou rces and majo r capi ta l  expend i tu re in i t iat ives;

3 .  over see ing and mon i to r ing:
a. o rgan i sat iona l per fo r mance and the ach ievement of the Group’s s t rateg ic goa l s and 

object ives;  and
b. p rog ress of majo r capi ta l  expend i tu res and other s ign i f icant co rporate p ro jects 

inc lud ing any acqu i s i t ions o r d ives tments;
4 .  mon i to r ing f inancia l  per fo r mance inc lud ing approva l of the annua l and ha l f -year 

f inancia l  repor t s and l ia i son w i th the Company’s aud i to r s ;
5 .  appointment,  per fo r mance assessment and, i f  necessa r y,  remova l of the Manag ing 

D i recto r ;
6 .  rat i f y ing the appointment and removal of and cont r ibut ing to the per fo r mance 

assessment of member s of the sen io r management team;
7. ensu r ing there a re ef fect ive management p rocesses in p lace and approv ing majo r 

co rporate in i t iat ives;
8 .  enhancing and p rotect ing the reputat ion of the o rgan i sat ion; and
9. over see ing the operat ion of the Group’s sys tem fo r compl iance and r i sk management 

repor t ing to sha reho lder s .

4 .4.   NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

The Board has adopted speci f ic p r inc ip les in re lat ion to Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s’ 
independence.  These s tate that to be deemed independent,  a D i recto r must be a Non -
E xecut ive and:
• not be a subs tant ia l  sha reho lder of the Company o r an of f ice r of,  o r other w i se associated 

d i rect ly w i th,  a subs tant ia l  sha reho lder of the Company;
• w i th in the las t th ree year s ,  not have been employed in an execut ive capaci t y by the 

Company o r any other Group member o r been a D i recto r af te r ceas ing to ho ld any such 
employment; 

• w i th in the las t th ree year s not have been a p r inc ipa l of a mater ia l  p rofess iona l adv i so r 
o r a mater ia l  consu l tant to the Company o r any other Group member, o r an employee 
mater ia l l y as sociated w i th the se r v ice p rov ided; 

• not be a mater ia l  supp l ie r o r cus tomer of the Company o r any other Group member,  o r 
an of f ice r of o r other w i se associated d i rect ly o r ind i rect ly w i th a mater ia l  supp l ie r o r 
cus tomer ;

• must have no mater ia l  cont ractua l re lat ionsh ip w i th the Company o r a cont ro l led ent i t y 
other than as a D i recto r of the Group;

• not have been on the Board fo r any per iod wh ich cou ld, o r cou ld reasonably be 
perce ived to, mater ia l l y inte r fe re w i th the D i recto r’s  ab i l i t y to act in the bes t inte res t s of 
the Company; and 

• be f ree f rom any inte res t and any bus iness o r other re lat ionsh ip wh ich cou ld, o r cou ld 
reasonably be perce ived to, mater ia l l y inte r fe re w i th the D i recto r’s  ab i l i t y to act in the 
bes t inte res t s of the Company.
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4 .5.   TRADING POLICY

Di recto r s a re sub ject to the Corporat ions Act 20 01 re lat ive to res t r ict ions apply ing to 
acqu i r ing and d i spos ing of secur i t ies of the Company, i f  they a re in possess ion of info r mat ion 
wh ich i s  not genera l l y ava i lab le, and wh ich, i f  genera l l y ava i lab le, a reasonable per son 
wou ld expect to have a mater ia l  ef fect on the p r ice of the secur i t ies of the Company. 

The Company’s po l icy res t r ict s D i recto r s and employees f rom act ing on mater ia l  in fo r mat ion 
unt i l  i t  has been re leased to the mar ket and adequate t ime has been g iven fo r th i s  to be 
ref lected in the secur i t y’s p r ices . 

4 .6.   CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)

The Cha i r man i s  respons ib le fo r lead ing the Board, ensu r ing D i recto r s a re p roper ly b r iefed 
in a l l  mat te r s re levant to the i r  ro le and respons ib i l i t ies ,  faci l i tat ing Board d i scuss ions and 
manag ing the Board’s re lat ionsh ip w i th the Company’s sen io r execut ives . 

The CEO i s  respons ib le fo r implement ing Group s t rateg ies and po l ic ies .  The Board char te r 
speci f ies that these a re separate ro les to be under taken by separate people.

4.7.   COMMITMENT
The Board he ld s i x Board meet ings du r ing the year. 

The number of meet ings of the Company’s Board of D i recto r s and of each Board commit tee 
he ld du r ing the year ended 3 0 June 2017, and the number of meet ings at tended by each 
D i recto r i s  d i sc losed in the D i recto r s’  Repor t. 

The th ree Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s meet du r ing the year,  in schedu led ses s ions w i thout the 
p resence of management, to d i scuss the operat ion of the Board and a range of other mat te r s .  
Re levant mat te r s a r i s ing f rom th i s  meet ing was sha red w i th the fu l l  Board. 

I t  i s  the Company’s p ract ice to a l low i t s  E xecut ive D i recto r s to accept appointments outs ide 
the Company w i th p r io r w r i t ten approva l of the Board.  

P r io r  to appointment o r be ing submit ted to fo r re - e lect ion, each Non - E xecut ive D i recto r 
i s  requ i red to speci f ica l l y acknowledge that they have and w i l l  cont inue to have the t ime 
ava i lab le to d i scharge the i r  respons ib i l i t ies to the Company.  

4 .8.   CORPORATE REPORTING 

The Manag ing D i recto r and Cha i r  of the Aud i t  Commit tee have made the fo l low ing 
cer t i f icat ions to the Board:

• that the Group’s f inancia l  repor t s a re complete and p resent a t r ue and fa i r  v iew, in a l l 
mater ia l  respects ,  of the f inancia l  cond i t ion and operat iona l resu l t s  of the Group and a re 
in accordance w i th re levant account ing s tandards;  and

• that the above s tatement i s  founded on a sound sys tem of r i sk management and inte rna l 
compl iance and cont ro l  wh ich implements the po l ic ies adopted by the Board and that 
the Group’s r i sk management and inte rna l compl iance and cont ro l  i s  operat ing ef f ic ient ly 
and ef fect ive ly in a l l  mater ia l  respects .
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4 .9.   AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has es tab l i shed an Aud i t  Commit tee wh ich acts in accordance w i th i t s  char te r.  The 
Aud i t  Commit tee cons i s t s  of the fo l low ing Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s : 

M r S L Pynt 
M r G Smith

Due to the smal l  number of Board member s ,  the Board has ag reed to a l low the Aud i t 
Commit tee to be made up of t wo independent Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s .  Deta i l s  of these 
D i recto r s’  qua l i f icat ions and at tendance at Aud i t  Commit tee meet ings a re set out in the 
D i recto r s’  Repor t. 

The Aud i t  Commit tee has appropr iate f inancia l  exper t i se and a l l  member s a re f inancia l l y 
l i te rate and have an appropr iate under s tand ing of the indus t r ies in wh ich the Group 
operates .  The Aud i t  Commit tee has autho r i t y,  w i th in the scope of i t s  respons ib i l i t ies ,  to seek 
any info r mat ion i t  requ i res f rom any employee o r ex te rna l pa r t y. 

I t  i s  the commit tee’s respons ib i l i t y to ensu re that an ef fect ive inte rna l cont ro l  f ramewor k ex i s t s 
w i th in the Group inc lud ing l ia i son w i th ex te rna l aud i to r s .    Th i s  inc ludes inte rna l cont ro l s  to 
dea l w i th both the ef fect iveness and ef f ic iency of s ign i f icant bus iness p rocesses .  Th i s  inc ludes 
the safeguard ing of as set s ,  the maintenance of p roper account ing records and the re l iab i l i t y 
of f inancia l  in fo r mat ion.

4.10.   REMUNERATION

The Board does not have a separate remunerat ion commit tee due to the smal l  number of 
Board member s .  Consequent ly,  the i s sue of remunerat ion i s  under the cont ro l  of the Board 
wh ich has the respons ib i l i t y of rev iew ing and approv ing remunerat ion of the Non - E xecut ive 
Cha i r man and other execut ives of the Group. Remunerat ion leve l s w i l l  be compet i t ive ly 
set to at t ract the most qua l i f ied and exper ienced D i recto r s and sen io r execut ives .  Where 
necessa r y the Board may obta in independent adv ice on the appropr iateness of remunerat ion 
packages and obta in any necessa r y sha reho lder approva l s .  The amount of remunerat ion fo r 
a l l  D i recto r s i s  deta i led in the D i recto r s’  Repor t sect ion. 

Payment of equ i t y - based execut ive remunerat ion i s  made in accordance w i th th resho lds 
set in p lans approved by sha reho lder s .  The Board expects that the remunerat ion s t r uctu re 
implemented w i l l  resu l t  in the Company be ing ab le to at t ract and reta in the bes t execut ives 
to r un the Group. I t  w i l l  a l so p rov ide execut ives w i th the necessa r y incent ives to wor k to g row 
long -te r m shareho lder va lue.

4.11.   MONITORING OF THE BOARD’S PERFORMANCE

The Board has adopted a code of conduct fo r D i recto r s in keeping w i th the Company’s des i re 
to remain a good corporate c i t i zen and appropr iate ly ba lance, p rotect and p rese r ve a l l 
s takeho lder s’  inte res t s .

In o rder to ensu re that the Board cont inues to d i scharge i t s  respons ib i l i t ies in an appropr iate 
manner,  the Cha i r man rev iews the per fo r mance of a l l  D i recto r s annua l ly.  
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4 .12.   COMMUNICATION TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Board a ims to ensu re that the sha reho lder s ,  on beha l f  of whom they act,  a re info r med of 
a l l  i n fo r mat ion necessa r y to assess the per fo r mance of the economic ent i t y.   I n fo r mat ion i s 
communicated to the sha reho lder s th rough:

• the Annua l Repor t wh ich i s  d i s t r ibuted to a l l  sha reho lder s ;
• the Annua l Genera l  Meet ing and other meet ings ca l led to obta in approva l fo r Board 

act ion as appropr iate;
• regu la r re lease of media and mar ket updates to the ASX; and
• the Company’s webs i te: w w w.g loba l - hea l th .com.

The Company Secreta r y i s  the per son respons ib le fo r communicat ions w i th the Aus t ra l ian 
Stock E xchange (ASX).   Th i s  ro le inc ludes respons ib i l i t y fo r ensu r ing compl iance w i th the 
cont inuous d i sc losu re requ i rements in the ASX L i s t ing Ru les and over see ing and coord inat ing 
info r mat ion d i sc losu re to the ASX, ana lys t s ,  b roker s ,  sha reho lder s ,  the media and the pub l ic. 
A l l  i n fo r mat ion d i sc losed to the ASX i s  pos ted on the Company’s webs i te as soon as i t  i s 
d i sc losed to the ASX. When ana lys t s  a re b r iefed on aspects of the Group’s operat ions ,  the 
mater ia l s  used in the p resentat ion a re re leased to the ASX and posted on the Company’s 
webs i te. 

A l l  sha reho lder s a re ent i t led to receive a copy of the Company’s annua l and ha l f  year ly 
repor t s .  In add i t ion, the Company seek s to p rov ide oppor tun i t ies fo r sha reho lder s to 
par t ic ipate th rough e lect ron ic means. In i t iat ives to faci l i tate th i s  inc lude mak ing a l l  Company 
announcements ,  media b r ief ings ,  deta i l s  of Company meet ings ,  p res s re leases fo r the las t 
th ree year s and f inancia l  repor t s fo r the las t th ree year s ava i lab le on the Company’s webs i te. 
The webs i te a l so inc ludes an opt ion fo r sha reho lder s to reg i s te r the i r  emai l  address fo r d i rect 
emai l  updates on Company mat te r s .  

4 .13.     INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

Each D i recto r i s  ent i t led to seek independent p rofess iona l adv ice at the expense of the 
Company in ca r r y ing out h i s  dut ies as a D i recto r.   P r io r  to obta in ing such adv ice, i f  at the 
expense of the economic ent i t y,  the Cha i r man w i l l  be adv i sed of the mat te r and an es t imate 
of the cos t.
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4 .14.   ASX RECOMMENDATIONS

 Complied Note
1.1 A listed entity should disclose: (a) the respective roles and responsibilities of its Board and 

management; and (b) those matters expressly reserved to the Board and those delegated to 
senior management



1.2 A listed entity should: (a) undertake appropriate checks before appointing a person, or 
putting forward to security holders a candidate for election, as a director; and (b) provide 
security holders with all material information in its possession relevant to a decision on whether 
or not to elect or re-elect a director.



1.3 A listed entity should have a written agreement with each director and senior executive 
setting out the terms of their appointment. 

1.4 The company secretary of a listed entity should be accountable directly to the Board, through 
the chair, on all matters to do with the proper functioning of the Board. 

1.5 A listed entity should have a diversity policy which includes requirements for the Board or a 
relevant committee of the Board to set measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity 
and to assess annually both the objectives and the entity’s progress in achieving them; (b) 
disclose that policy or a summary of it; and disclose as at the end of each reporting period 
the measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity set by the Board or a relevant 
committee of the Board in accordance with the entity’s diversity policy and its progress 
towards achieving them, and either: the respective proportions of men and women on 
the board, in senior executive positions and across the whole organisation (including how 
the entity has defi ned “senior executive” for these purposes); or if the entity is a ‘relevant 
employer’ under the Workplace Gender Equality Act, the entity’s most recent ‘Gender 
Equality Indicators’, as defi ned in and published under that Act.



1.6 A listed entity should have and disclose the process for periodically evaluating the 
performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors; and (b) disclose, in relation 
to each reporting period, whether a performance evaluation was undertaken in the reporting 
period in accordance with that process.



1.7 A listed entity should have and disclose the process for periodically evaluating the 
performance of its senior executives; and (b) disclose, in relation to each reporting period, 
whether a performance evaluation was undertaken in the reporting period in accordance 
with that process.



2.1 The board of a listed entity should: (a) have a nomination committee which: (1) has at least 
three members, a majority of whom are independent directors; and  (2) is chaired by an 
independent director, and disclose: (3) the charter of the committee; (4) the members of 
the committee; and (5) as at the end of each reporting period, the number of times the 
committee met throughout the period and the individual attendances of the members at 
those meetings; or (b) if it does not have a nomination committee, disclose that fact and the 
processes it employs to address board succession issues and to ensure that the board has the 
appropriate balance of skills, knowledge, experience, independence and diversity to enable 
it to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively.

-- 1

2.2 A listed entity should have and disclose a board skills matrix setting out the mix of skills and 
diversity that the board currently has or is looking to achieve in its membership. 

2.3 A listed entity should disclose: (a) the names of the directors considered by the board to be 
independent directors; (b) if a director has an interest, position, association or relationship of 
the type described in Box 2.3 but the board is of the opinion that it does not compromise the 
independence of the director, the nature of the interest, position, association or relationship in 
question and an explanation of why the board is of that opinion; and (c) the length of service 
of each director.



2.4 A majority of the Board of a listed entity should be independent Directors 
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 Complied Note
2.5 The Chair of the Board of a listed entity should be an independent director and, in particular, 

should not be the same person as the CEO of the entity. 
2.6 A listed entity should have a program for inducting new directors and provide appropriate 

professional development opportunities for directors to develop and maintain the skills and 
knowledge needed to perform their role as directors effectively.



3.1 A listed entity should: (a) have a code of conduct for its directors, senior executives and 
employees; and (b) disclose that code or a summary of it. 

4.1 The Board of a listed entity should: (a) have an Audit Committee which:  (1) has at least three 
members, all of whom are non-executive directors and a majority of whom are independent 
directors; and (2) is chaired by an independent director, who is not the chair of the board, 
and disclose: (3) the charter of the committee; (4) the relevant qualifi cations and experience 
of the members of the committee; and (5) in relation to each reporting period, the number 
of times the committee met throughout the period and the individual attendances of the 
members at those meetings; or (b) if it does not have an audit committee, disclose that fact 
and the processes it employs that independently verify and safeguard the integrity of its 
corporate reporting, including the processes for the appointment and removal of the external 
auditor and the rotation of the audit engagement partner.

 2

4.2 The board of a listed entity should, before it approves the entity’s fi nancial statements 
for a fi nancial period, receive from its CEO and CFO a declaration that, in their opinion, 
the fi nancial records of the entity have been properly maintained and that the fi nancial 
statements comply with the appropriate accounting standards and give a true and fair view 
of the fi nancial position and performance of the entity and that the opinion has been formed 
on the basis of a sound system of risk management and internal control which is operating 
effectively.



4.3 A listed entity that has an AGM should ensure that its external auditor attends its AGM and is 
available to answer questions from security holders relevant to the audit. 

5.1 A listed entity should: (a) have a written policy for complying with its continuous disclosure 
obligations under the Listing Rules; and (b) disclose that policy or a summary of it. 

6.1 A listed entity should provide information about itself and its governance to investors via its 
website. 

6.2 A listed entity should design and implement an investor relations program to facilitate 
effective two-way communication with investors. 

6.3 A listed entity should disclose the policies and processes it has in place to facilitate and 
encourage participation at meetings of security holders. 

6.4 A listed entity should give security holders the option to receive communications from, and 
send communications to, the entity and its security registry electronically. 

7.1 The board of a listed entity should: (a) have a committee or committees to oversee risk, each 
of which: (1) has at least three members, a majority of whom are independent directors; and 
(2) is chaired by an independent director, and disclose: (3) the charter of the committee; (4) 
the members of the committee; and (5) as at the end of each reporting period, the number 
of times the committee met throughout the period and the individual attendances of the 
members at those meetings; or (b) if it does not have a risk committee or committees that 
satisfy (a) above, disclose that fact and the processes it employs for overseeing the entity’s risk 
management framework.



7.2 The Board or a committee of the Board should: (a) review the entity’s risk management 
framework at least annually to satisfy itself that it continues to be sound; and (b) disclose, in 
relation to each reporting period, whether such a review has taken place.  


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 Complied Note
7.3 A listed entity should disclose: (a) if it has an internal audit function, how the function is 

structured and what role it performs; or (b) if it does not have an internal audit function, that 
fact and the processes it employs for evaluating and continually improving the effectiveness 
of its risk management and internal control processes.

-- 3

7.4 A listed entity should disclose whether it has any material exposure to economic, 
environmental and social sustainability risks and, if it does, how it manages or intends to 
manage those risks.



8.1 The Board of a listed entity should : (a) have a remuneration committee which: (1) has at 
least three members, a majority of whom are independent directors; and (2) is chaired by 
an independent director, and disclose: (3) the charter of the committee; (4) the members 
of the committee; and (5) as at the end of each reporting period, the number of times the 
committee met throughout the period and the individual attendances of the members at 
those meetings; or (b) if it does not have a remuneration committee, disclose that fact and 
the processes it employs for setting the level and composition of remuneration for directors 
and senior executives and ensuring that such remuneration is appropriate and not excessive.

-- 4

8.2 A listed entity should separately disclose its policies and practices regarding the remuneration 
of non-executive directors and the remuneration of executive directors and other senior 
executives.



8.3 A listed entity which has an equity-based remuneration scheme should: (a) have a policy 
on whether participants are permitted to enter into transactions (whether through the use of 
derivatives or otherwise) which limit the economic risk of participating in the scheme; and (b) 
disclose that policy or a summary of it.



NOTES:

Note 1:  The Board of D i recto r s of the Company does not have a Nominat ion Commit tee. 
The Board i s  of the op in ion that due to the natu re and s i ze of the Company, the funct ions 
per fo r med by a Nominat ion Commit tee can be adequate ly hand led by the fu l l  Board. 

Note 2:  The Company has th ree Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s ,  of whom t wo compr i se the Aud i t 
Commit tee. The Board i s  of the op in ion that due to the natu re and s i ze of the Company, th i s 
funct ion can be adequate ly hand led w i th les s than the th ree member s recommended under 
ASX gu ide l ines .

Note 3:  The Company does not have an Inte rna l Aud i t  Funct ion. The Board i s  of the op in ion 
that due to the natu re and s i ze of the Company, the funct ions per fo r med by an inte rna l 
aud i to r a re be ing adequate ly se r ved by the Company’s independent ex te rna l aud i to r s .

Note 4:  The Company does not have a Remunerat ion Commit tee. The Board i s  of the op in ion 
that due to the natu re and s i ze of the Company, the funct ions per fo r med by a Remunerat ion 
Commit tee can be adequate ly hand led by the fu l l  Board.
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5.   ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
Th i s  G loba l Hea l th L im i ted conso l idated ent i t y (‘Group’) f inancia l  repor t i s  p resented in the 
Aus t ra l ian cu r rency. 

G loba l Hea l th L im i ted i s  a company l im i ted by sha res ,  incorporated and domici led in 
Aus t ra l ia . 

The Company’s reg i s te red of f ice and p r inc ipa l p lace of bus iness i s : 

G loba l Hea l th L im i ted
Leve l 2 ,  607 Bou r ke St reet
Melbourne, V icto r ia 3 0 0 0
Aust ra l ia .

A descr ipt ion of the natu re of the Group’s operat ions and i t s  p r inc ipa l act iv i t ies i s  i nc luded in 
the rev iew of operat ions and act iv i t ies in the D i recto r s’  Repor t wh ich a re par t of th i s  f inancia l 
repor t.

The f inancia l  repor t was autho r i sed fo r i s sue by the D i recto r s on 27 September 2017. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note
Consol idated Group

2017
$

2016 Restated*
$

       Revenue from the sale of licenses and 
maintenance contracts 

2 3,415,775 3,587,110

   Revenue from professional services 2 1,191,795 906,187

   Other income 2 692,611 706,153

   Chiron Software Settlement 2 5,000,000 -

Total revenue from continuing operations 10,300,181 5,199,450

   Salaries and related costs 3 (4,954,609) (3,496,079)

   Direct external costs 3 (263,754) (170,475)

   General and administration costs 3 (1,731,893) (957,523)

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 
amortisation

3,349,925 575,373

   Finance costs 3 (146,500) (97,568)

   Depreciation 3 (87,931) (122,048)

   Amortisation 3, 9 (266,021) (262,043)

   Impairment 3,9 (917,381) -

   Non-operating foreign exchange gains/(losses) (73) 14,231

Profi t before income tax 1,932,019 107,945

   Income tax benefi t/(expense) 4 (203,974) -

Net profi t for the period 1,728,045 107,945

Other comprehensive income

       Exchange differences on translating foreign 
operations

(6,259) (18,757)

Total comprehensive profi t for the period 1,721,786 89,188

Net profi t/(loss) for the period attributable to:

   Owners of the parent 17 1,728,369 106,061

   Non-controlling interest 18 (324) 1,884

1,728,045 107,945

Total comprehensive profi t/(loss) attributable to:

   Owners of the parent 1,722,118 87,268

   Non-controlling interest (332) 1,920

1,721,786 89,188

Earnings per share

Earnings per share – after tax

   Basic earnings after tax per share (cents per share) 25 5.212 (0.329)

   Diluted earnings per share after tax (cents per 
share)

25 4.896 (0.327)

Earnings per share – before tax

   Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 24 5.827 (0.329)

   Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 24 5.474 (0.327)
The above s tatement of p rof i t  o r  los s and other comprehens ive income 
shou ld be read in con junct ion w i th the accompany ing notes .
* Amount s shown i n the 2 016 compa rat ive co l umn he re do not co r respond to the 2 016 f i nanc ia l  s tatement s and ref lect 

res tatement s made, refe r to Note 1(v)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

Note
Consol idated Group

2017
$

2016 Restated*
$

As at 1 July 2015 Restated*

$
Current Assets

  Cash and cash equivalents  5 2,543,412 1,149,028 548,404

  Trade and Other Receivables 6 1,821,098 1,536,734 931,730

  Other Assets 7 185,969 841,718 235,989

  Current tax asset 10 481,842 - -

Total Current Assets 5,032,321 3,527,480 1,716,123

Non-Current Assets

  Trade and other receivables 6 140,911 276,645 135,047

  Property, plant and equipment 8 150,738 172,613 146,971

  Intangibles 9 4,817,920 4,847,152 3,880,762

  Deferred tax asset 10 596,599 -

Total Non-Current Assets 5,706,168 5,296,410 4,162,780

Total Assets 10,738,489 8,823,890 5,878,903

Current Liabilities

  Trade and other payables 11 1,079,282 1,395,768 718,130

  Interest bearing liabilities 12 389,880 355,351 28,508

  Provisions – Employee Benefi ts 13 506,469 423,370 452,510

  Unearned income 14 1,462,960 1,471,764 1,029,282

Total Current Liabilities 3,438,591 3,646,253 2,228,430

Non-Current Liabilities

  Interest bearing liabilities 12 1,078,880 1,386,378 39,415

  Provisions – Employee Benefi ts 13 30,764 146,001 127,488

  Unearned income 14 46,128 - -

  Deferred tax liability 10 1,282,415 - -

Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,438,187 1,532,379 166,903

Total Liabilities 5,876,778 5,178,632 2,395,333

Net Assets/(Liabilities) 4,861,711 3,645,258 3,483,570

Equity

  Contributed equity 15 20,836,242 20,728,742 20,656,242

  Reserves 16 105,079 60,463 79,256

  Accumulated losses 17 (16,079,686) (17,144,355) (17,250,416)

Total Parent Entity Interest 4,861,635 3,644,850 3,485,082

  Non-controlling interest 18 76 408 (1,512)

Total Equity 4,861,711 3,645,258 3,483,570
The above s tatement of f inancia l  pos i t ion shou ld be read in con junct ion w i th the 
accompany ing notes .
* Amount s shown i n the 2 016 compa rat ive co l umn he re do not co r respond to the 2 016 f i nanc ia l  s tatement s and ref lect 

res tatement s made, refe r to Note 1(v)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
30 JUNE 2017

Consol idated Group

Issued 
capital 

ordinary
Option 
reserve

Currency 
translat ion 

reserve
Retained 
earnings

Total 
attr ibutable 
to owners of 
the parent

Non-
Control l ing 

interest
Total equity

Balance 1 July 2015 
Restated*

20,656,242 29,978 49,278 (17,250,416) 3,485,082 (1,512) 3,483,570

Issue of share capital 72,500 - - - 72,500 - 72,500

Transactions with owners 72,500 - - - 72,500 - 72,500

Profi t/(loss) for the period - - - 106,061 106,061 1,884 107,945

Other comprehensive 
income:

Exchange difference 
on translation of foreign 

operations
- - (18,793) - (18,793) 36 (18,757)

Total comprehensive profi t/
(loss) for the period

- - (18,793) 106,061 (106,061) 1,920 89,188

Balance 30 June 2016 
Restated* 20,728,742 29,978 30,485 (17,144,355) 3,644,850 408 3,645,258

Balance 1 July 2016 
Restated*

20,728,742 29,978 30,485 (17,144,355) 3,644,850 408 3,645,258

Issue of share capital 62,500 - - - 62,500 - 62,500

Exercise of options 45,000 - - - 45,000 - 45,000

Share based payment - 50,867 - - 50,867 - 50,867

Transactions with owners 107,500 50,867 - - 158,367 - 158,367

Profi t/(loss) for the period - - - 1,728,369 1,932,343 (324) 1,728,045

Payment of dividends - - - (663,700) (663,700) - (663,700)

Other comprehensive 
income:

Exchange difference 
on translation of foreign 

operations
- - (6,251) - (6,251) (8) (6,259)

Total comprehensive profi t/
(loss) for the period

- - (6,251) 1,064,669 1,262,392 (332) 1,058,086

Balance 30 June 2017 20,836,242 80,845 24,234 (16,079,686) 5,065,609 76 4,861,711

The above s tatement of changes in equ i t y shou ld be read in con junct ion w i th the 
accompany ing notes .
* Amount s shown i n the 2 016 compa rat ive co l umn he re do not co r respond to the 2 016 f i nanc ia l  s tatement s and ref lect 

res tatement s made,  refe r to Note 1(v)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note
Consol idated Group

2017
$

2016
$

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

   Receipts from customers 4,722,667 4,839,316

 Cash received from the settlement of Chiron Software 
litigation

5,000,000 -

   Receipts from Research and Development Grants 423,002 518,089

   Payments to suppliers and employees (6,491,096) (4,743,208)

   Interest received 43,206 15,069

   Interest and fi nance costs paid (146,500) (97,568)

Net cash infl ow from operating activities 27 3,551,279 531,698

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

   Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment - 1,850

   Purchase of property, plant and equipment (66,056) (149,273)

   Purchase of intangibles (1,154,170) (1,457,457)

Net cash outfl ow from investing activities (1,220,226) (1,604,880)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

   Proceeds from borrowings - 1,915,578

   Repayment of borrowings (272,969) (241,772)

   Payment of dividends (663,700) -

Net cash (outfl ow)/infl ow from fi nancing activities (936,669) 1,673,806

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents held 1,394,384 600,624

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the fi nancial 
year

1,149,028 548,404

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 

the fi nancial year
5 2,543,412 1,149,028

The above s tatement of cash f lows shou ld be read in con junct ion w i th the accompany ing 
notes .

The conso l idated f inancia l  s tatements and notes represent those of G loba l Hea l th Ltd and 
Cont ro l led Ent i t ies (the “conso l idated g roup” o r “g roup”).G loba l Hea l th L im i ted i s  a fo r- p rof i t 
l i s ted company l im i ted by sha res and domici led in Aus t ra l ia . 

The conso l idated f inancia l  s tatements a re p resented in Aus t ra l ian do l la r s  wh ich i s  the parent 
ent i t y’s funct iona l and p resentat ion cu r rency. Un les s s tated other w i se, ba lances fo r the 2016 
a re res tated as per Note 1(v).

The separate f inancia l  s tatements and notes of the parent ent i t y,  G loba l Hea l th L im i ted, have 
not been p resented w i th in th i s  f inancia l  repor t as per mit ted by amendments made to the 
Corporat ions Act 20 01. The parent ent i t y summar y i s  inc luded in Note 3 0.

The f inancia l  s tatements were autho r i sed fo r i s sue by the Board of D i recto r s on x x September 
2017.
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1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The genera l  pu rpose f inancia l  s tatements have been p repared in accordance w i th the 
Corporat ions Act 20 01, Aus t ra l ian Account ing Standards and Inte rp retat ions of the Aus t ra l ian 
Account ing Standards Board and Inte rnat iona l F inancia l  Repor t ing Standards as i s sued by 
the Inte rnat iona l Account ing Standards Board. The Group i s  a fo r- p rof i t  ent i t y fo r f inancia l 
repor t ing pu rposes under Aus t ra l ian Account ing Standards .  Mater ia l  account ing po l ic ies 
adopted in the p reparat ion of these f inancia l  s tatements a re p resented be low and have been 
cons i s tent ly app l ied un les s s tated other w i se.

E xcept fo r cash f low info r mat ion, the f inancia l  s tatements have been p repared on an 
accr ua l s bas i s  and a re based on h i s to r ica l  cos t s ,  modi f ied, where appl icab le, by the 
measu rement at fa i r  va lue of se lected non - cu r rent as set s ,  f inancia l  as set s and f inancia l 
l iab i l i t ies .

b. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
The Group f inancia l  s tatements conso l idate those of the Pa rent Company and a l l  of i t s 
subs id ia r ies as of 3 0 June 2017.  The Pa rent cont ro l s  a subs id ia r y i f  i t  i s  exposed, o r has r ight s , 
to va r iab le retu rns f rom i t s  invo lvement w i th the subs id ia r y and has the ab i l i t y to af fect those 
retu rns th rough i t s  power over the subs id ia r y.

A l i s t  of cont ro l led ent i t ies i s  conta ined in Note 19 to the f inancia l  s tatements .  A l l  cont ro l led 
ent i t ies have a June f inancia l  year end.
As at repor t ing date, the asset s and l iab i l i t ies of a l l  cont ro l led ent i t ies have been 
incorporated into the conso l idated f inancia l  s tatements as wel l  as the i r  resu l t s  fo r the 
year then ended. Where cont ro l led ent i t ies have ente red ( lef t)  the Group du r ing the year, 
the i r  operat ing resu l t s  have been inc luded (exc luded) f rom the date cont ro l  was obta ined 
(ceased). A l l  i nte r- company ba lances and t ransact ions bet ween ent i t ies in the Group, 
inc lud ing any un rea l i sed p rof i t s  o r los ses ,  have been e l im inated on conso l idat ion. Account ing 
po l ic ies of subs id ia r ies have been changed where necessa r y to ensu re cons i s tency w i th those 
po l ic ies app l ied by the parent ent i t y.

Non - cont ro l l i ng inte res t s ,  be ing that po r t ion of the p rof i t  o r  los s and net as set s of subs id ia r ies 
at t r ibutab le to equ i t y inte res t s he ld by per sons outs ide the Group, a re shown separate ly 
w i th in the equ i t y sect ion of the conso l idated s tatement of f inancia l  pos i t ion and in the 
conso l idated s tatement of p rof i t  o r los s .

Bus iness combinat ions occur where an acqu i re r obta ins cont ro l  over one o r more bus inesses 
and resu l t s  in the conso l idat ion of i t s  as set s and l iab i l i t ies .  A bus iness combinat ion i s 
accounted fo r by apply ing the acqu i s i t ion method, un les s i t  i s  a combinat ion invo lv ing 
ent i t ies o r bus inesses under common cont ro l .  The acqu i s i t ion method requ i res that fo r each 
bus iness combinat ion one of the combin ing ent i t ies must be ident i f ied as the acqu i re r ( i .e. 
pa rent ent i t y).  The bus iness combinat ion w i l l  be accounted fo r as at the acqu i s i t ion date, 
wh ich i s  the date that cont ro l  over the acqu i ree i s  obta ined by the parent ent i t y.  At th i s 
date, the parent sha l l  recogn i se, in the conso l idated accounts ,  and sub ject to cer ta in l im i ted 
except ions ,  the fa i r  va lue of the ident i f iab le asset s acqu i red and l iab i l i t ies as sumed. In 
add i t ion, cont ingent l iab i l i t ies of the acqu i ree w i l l  be recogn i sed where a p resent ob l igat ion 
has been incu r red and i t s  fa i r  va lue can be re l iab ly measu red. 
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The acqu i s i t ion may resu l t  in the recogn i t ion of goodwi l l .  The method adopted fo r the 
measu rement of goodwi l l  w i l l  impact on the measu rement of any non - cont ro l l i ng inte res t to 
be recogn i sed in the acqu i ree where les s than 10 0% owner sh ip i s  he ld in the acqu i ree.

The acqu i s i t ion date fa i r  va lue of the cons iderat ion t rans fe r red fo r a bus iness combinat ion 
p lus the acqu i s i t ion date fa i r  va lue of any p rev ious ly - he ld equ i t y inte res t sha l l  fo r m the cos t of 
the inves tment.  Cons iderat ion may compr i se the sum of the asset s t rans fe r red by the acqu i re r, 
l iab i l i t ies incu r red by the acqu i re r to the fo r mer owner s of the acqu i ree and the equ i t y 
inte res t s i s sued by the acqu i re r.

Fa i r  va lue up l i f t s  in the va lue of p re - ex i s t ing equ i t y ho ld ings a re taken to the s tatement 
of p rof i t  o r  los s .  Where changes in the va lue of such equ i t y ho ld ings had been p rev ious ly 
recogn i sed in other comprehens ive income, such amounts a re recycled to p rof i t  o r  los s .

Inc luded in the measu rement of cons iderat ion t rans fe r red i s  any asset o r l iab i l i t y resu l t ing 
f rom a cont ingent cons iderat ion a r rangement.  Any ob l igat ion incu r red re lat ing to cont ingent 
cons iderat ion i s  c las s i f ied as e i the r a f inancia l  l iab i l i t y o r equ i t y ins t r ument,  depend ing 
upon the natu re of the a r rangement.  R ights to refunds o r cons iderat ion p rev ious ly pa id a re 
recogn i sed as a receivab le. Subsequent to in i t ia l  recogn i t ion, cont ingent cons iderat ion 
c las s i f ied as equ i t y i s  not re - measu red and i t s  subsequent set t lement i s  accounted fo r w i th in 
equ i t y.  Cont ingent cons iderat ion c las s i f ied as an asset o r a l iab i l i t y i s  re - measu red each 
repor t ing per iod to fa i r  va lue th rough the s tatement of p rof i t  o r  los s and other comprehens ive 
income un les s the change in va lue can be ident i f ied as ex i s t ing at acqu i s i t ion date. 

A l l  t ransact ion cos t s incu r red in re lat ion to the bus iness combinat ion a re expensed to the 
s tatement of p rof i t  o r  los s and other comprehens ive income. 

c. IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
At each repor t ing date, the Group rev iews the car r y ing va lues of i t s  tang ib le and intang ib le 
asset s to dete r mine whether the re i s  any ind icat ion that those asset s have been impai red. I f 
such an ind icat ion ex i s t s ,  the recoverab le amount of the asset,  be ing the h igher of the asset’s 
fa i r  va lue les s cos t s to se l l  and va lue in use, i s  compared to the asset’s ca r r y ing va lue. In 
as sess ing va lue in use, the es t imated futu re cash f lows a re d i scounted to the i r  p resent va lue 
us ing a p re -tax d i scount rate that ref lects cu r rent mar ket as sessments of the t ime va lue of 
money and the r i sk s speci f ic to the asset fo r wh ich the es t imates of futu re cash f lows have not 
been ad jus ted.

Any excess of the asset’s ca r r y ing va lue over i t s  recoverab le amount i s  expensed to the 
s tatement of p rof i t  o r  los s and other comprehens ive income.   
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d. REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue i s  measu red at the fa i r  va lue of the cons iderat ion received o r rece ivab le. Revenue i s 
recogn i sed fo r the majo r bus iness act iv i t ies as fo l lows:

SALES REVENUE
Sa les revenue compr i ses revenue earned (net of retu rns ,  d i scount and a l lowances) f rom the 
p rov i s ion of p roducts o r se r v ices to ent i t ies out s ide the conso l idated ent i t y.   Sa les revenue i s 
categor i sed and recogn i sed as fo l lows:

In i t ia l  L icence Fees and Upg rade Fees 
In i t ia l  L icence Fees and Upg rade Fees a re b rought to account on the ear l ie r  of :

1.  the date of s ign ing the cont ract o r ag reement o r ;
2 .  the date s t ipu lated in the executed cont ract o r ag reement.  

The ent i t y i s  ab le to recogn i se the revenue when the s ign i f icant r i sk s of owner sh ip a re 
t rans fe r red f rom the ent i t y to the buyer and one of the above cond i t ions i s  met.

Maintenance Fees
Maintenance fees a re a non - refundable defe r red revenue s t ream. Cl ient s subscr ibe to the i r 
l icences in advance – rang ing f rom month ly,  quar te r ly,  ha l f -year ly to annua l payments .  They 
a re p ropor t iona l l y accr ued in a r rea r s ,  at the end of each month and recogn i sed as revenue 
over the l icence per iod. These ent i t le the cus tomer to a usage l icence, he lp desk te lephone 
suppor t and r ight s to ex tended war rant y and p roduct enhancements .

Pro fess iona l Se r v ices
Profess iona l se r v ices a re b rought to account on the i s sue of invo ice on complet ion of wor k 
that may be per fo r med on a t ime and mater ia l s  o r a p ro ject m i les tone bas i s .  Th i s  inc ludes 
wor k done in the hea l th and non - hea l th segments .

GRANTS
Grant mon ies a re not recogn i sed unt i l  the re i s  reasonable assu rance that the conso l idated 
ent i t y w i l l  comply w i th the cond i t ions at tach ing to i t,  and that the g rant w i l l  be received.  
Receipt of a g rant does not of i t se l f  p rov ide conclus ive ev idence that the cond i t ions 
at tach ing to the g rant have been o r w i l l  be fu l f i l led.

INTEREST INCOME
I nte res t revenue i s  recogn i sed us ing the ef fect ive inte res t method.

ASSET SALES
The net p rof i t  o r  los s on sa les of f i xed asset s inc lud ing p lant and equ ipment i s  i nc luded as 
revenue of the conso l idated ent i t y.   The p rof i t  o r los s on d i sposa l of as set s i s  b rought to 
account at the date an uncond i t iona l cont ract of sa le i s  s igned. 

 

e. GOODS AND SERVICES TAX
Revenues, expenses and asset s a re recogn i sed net of the amount of Goods and Se r v ices 
Tax (GST),  except where the amount of GST incu r red i s  not recoverab le f rom the Aus t ra l ian 
Taxat ion Of f ice (ATO). In these c i rcumstances the GST i s  recogn i sed as par t of the cos t of 
acqu i s i t ion of the asset o r as par t of an i tem of the expense. 

Receivab les and payables a re s tated w i th the amount of GST inc luded. The net amount of 
GST recoverab le f rom, o r payable to, the ATO i s  inc luded as a cu r rent as set o r l iab i l i t y in the 
conso l idated s tatement of f inancia l  pos i t ion.



41

RE VI E W OF 
OPER AT ION S

D I RECTORS’ 
RE PORT

CORPOR ATE 
GOVE RNANCE 

STATEME NT

D I RECTORS’ 
DECL AR AT ION

AN NUAL 
F I NANCIAL 

RE PORT

SHARE HOLDE R 
I N FORM AT I ON

CORPOR ATE 
D I RECTORY

CONTE NT S

 
Cash f lows a re inc luded in the s tatement of cash f lows on a g ross bas i s .  The GST components 
of cash f lows a r i s ing f rom inves t ing and f inancing act iv i t ies wh ich a re recoverab le f rom, o r 
payable to, the ATO a re c las s i f ied as operat ing cash f low.

f .  INCOME TAX
The income tax expense o r revenue fo r the per iod i s  the tax payable on the cu r rent per iod’s 
taxab le income based on the nat iona l income tax rate fo r each ju r i sd ict ion ad jus ted by 
changes in defe r red tax asset s and l iab i l i t ies at t r ibutab le to tempora r y d i f fe rences bet ween 
the tax bases of as set s and l iab i l i t ies and the i r  ca r r y ing va lues in the f inancia l  s tatements , 
and to unused tax los ses .   Defe r red tax asset s and l iab i l i t ies a re recogn i sed fo r tempora r y 
d i f fe rences at the tax rates expected to apply when the asset s a re recovered o r l iab i l i t ies 
a re set t led, based on those tax rates wh ich a re subs tant ia l l y enacted fo r each ju r i sd ict ion.  
The re levant tax rates a re appl ied to the cumulat ive amounts of deduct ib le and taxab le 
tempora r y d i f fe rences a r i s ing f rom the in i t ia l  recogn i t ion of an asset o r a l iab i l i t y.   No 
defe r red tax asset o r l iab i l i t y i s  recogn i sed in re lat ion to these tempora r y d i f fe rences i f  they 
a rose in a t ransact ion, other than a bus iness combinat ion, that at the t ime of the t ransact ion 
d id not af fect e i the r account ing p rof i t  o r taxab le p rof i t  o r  los s .

Defe r red tax asset s a re recogn i sed fo r deduct ib le tempora r y d i f fe rences and unused tax 
los ses on ly i f  i t  i s  p robable that futu re taxab le amounts w i l l  be ava i lab le to ut i l i se those 
tempora r y d i f fe rences and los ses .

Cur rent and defe r red tax ba lances at t r ibutab le to amounts d i rect ly in equ i t y a re a l so 
recogn i sed d i rect ly in equ i t y.
 
TAX CONSOLIDATION LEGISLATION 
The Company and i t s  who l ly - owned Aust ra l ian ent i t ies have implemented the tax 
conso l idat ion leg i s lat ion. These were fo r mal ly adopted on lodgement of the 20 04 income tax 
retu rns .

The Company i s  respons ib le fo r recogn i s ing the defe r red tax asset s re lat ing to tax los ses fo r 
the Tax Conso l idated Group.  The Tax Conso l idated Group has ente red into a tax- sha r ing 
ag reement whereby each company in the Group cont r ibutes to the income tax payable in 
p ropor t ion to the i r  cont r ibut ion to the net p rof i t  befo re tax of the Tax Conso l idated Group.

g. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
I ntang ib le asset s cons i s t  of the fo l low ing:

DEVELOPED PRODUCTS
Developed p roducts a re in i t ia l l y recogn i sed at cos t and a re subsequent ly measu red at cos t 
les s accumulated amor t i sat ion and accumulated impai r ment los ses .  Deve loped p roducts 
have a f in i te l i fe and a re amor t i sed on a sys temat ic bas i s  matched to the futu re economic 
benef i t s  over the usefu l  l i fe of the p ro ject wh ich i s  10 year s .

PRODUCTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
E xpend i tu re du r ing the research phase of a p ro ject i s  recogn i sed as an expense when 
incu r red. Deve lopment cos t s a re capi ta l i sed on ly when techn ica l feas ib i l i t y s tud ies ident i f y 
that the p ro ject w i l l  de l ive r futu re economic benef i t s  and these benef i t s  can be measu red 
re l iab ly.
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The expend i tu re capi ta l i sed inc ludes the cos t of mater ia l s ,  d i rect labour and overhead 
cost s that a re d i rect ly at t r ibutab le to p repar ing the asset fo r i t s  intended use. Other 
deve lopment expend i tu re i s  recogn i sed in p rof i t  o r  los s as incu r red. The car r y ing va lue of 
p roducts under deve lopment a re rev iewed annua l ly when the asset i s  not yet ava i lab le fo r 
use, o r when events o r c i rcumstances ind icate that the car r y ing va lue may be impai red. On 
commercia l i sat ion of these p roducts wh ich i s  represented by when the asset i s  ava i lab le fo r 
use, the capi ta l i sed cos t s re lat ing to the p ro ject i s  t rans fe r red to Deve loped p roducts

h. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
COST AND VALUATION
Plant and equ ipment,  leaseho ld improvements and fu rn i tu re and f i t t ings a re car r ied at cos t.

Asset a re car r ied at cos t les s any accumulated depreciat ion and any impai r ment los ses .  Cost s 
inc lude pu rchase p r ice, other d i rect ly at t r ibutab le cos t s and the in i t ia l  es t imate of the cos t s 
of d i smant l ing and res to r ing the asset,  where appl icab le.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Plant and equ ipment,  leaseho ld improvements and fu rn i tu re and f i t t ings of the conso l idated 
ent i t y a re depreciated/amor t i sed on a d im in i sh ing va lue bas i s .  Rates of depreciat ion/
amor t i sat ion a re ca lcu lated to a l locate the cos t,  les s es t imated res idua l va lue at the end of 
the usefu l  l i ves of the asset s .

The depreciat ion/amor t i sat ion rates used fo r each c las s of depreciab le asset s a re:

Class of Asset Diminishing 
Value (%)

Leasehold Improvements 29 - 37

Plant and Equipment 25 - 50

The asset s’  res idua l va lues and usefu l  l i ves a re rev iewed, and ad jus ted i f  appropr iate, at the 
end of each repor t ing per iod. 

Ga ins and los ses on d i sposa l s a re dete r mined by compar ing p roceeds w i th the car r y ing 
amount.  These ga ins and los ses a re inc luded in the conso l idated s tatement of p rof i t  o r  los s 
and other comprehens ive income.

i .  FOREIGN CURRENCY
FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
I tems inc luded in the f inancia l  s tatements of each of the Group’s ent i t ies a re measu red 
us ing the cu r rency of the p r imar y economic env i ronment in wh ich the ent i t y operates (‘ the 
funct iona l cu r rency’).  The conso l idated f inancia l  s tatements a re p resented in Aus t ra l ian 
do l la r s ,  wh ich i s  G loba l Hea l th L im i ted’s funct iona l and p resentat ion cu r rency. 

TRANSLATION OF CONTROLLED FORE IGN ENTIT IES 
The resu l t s  and f inancia l  pos i t ion of a l l  the Group ent i t ies that have a funct iona l cu r rency 
d i f fe rent f rom the Group’s p resentat ion cu r rency a re t rans lated into the p resentat ion cu r rency 
as fo l lows:
• asset s and l iab i l i t ies a re t rans lated at exchange rates p reva i l i ng at the end of the 

repor t ing per iod;
• income and expenses a re t rans lated at average exchange rates fo r the per iod; and
• reta ined earn ings a re t rans lated at the exchange rates p reva i l i ng at the date of the 

t ransact ion.



43

RE VI E W OF 
OPER AT ION S

D I RECTORS’ 
RE PORT

CORPOR ATE 
GOVE RNANCE 

STATEME NT

D I RECTORS’ 
DECL AR AT ION

AN NUAL 
F I NANCIAL 

RE PORT

SHARE HOLDE R 
I N FORM AT I ON

CORPOR ATE 
D I RECTORY

CONTE NT S

E xchange d i f fe rences a r i s ing on t rans lat ion of fo re ign operat ions w i th funct iona l cu r rencies 
other than Aus t ra l ian do l la r s  a re recogn i sed in other comprehens ive income and inc luded in 
the fo re ign cu r rency t rans lat ion rese r ve in the s tatement of f inancia l  pos i t ion. The cumulat ive 
amount of these d i f fe rences i s  rec las s i f ied into p rof i t  o r  los s in the per iod in wh ich the 
operat ion i s  d i sposed of. 
 

j .  LEASES
Leases a re c las s i f ied at the i r  incept ion as e i the r operat ing o r f inance leases based on the 
economic subs tance of the ag reement so as to ref lect the r i sk s and benef i t s  inc identa l  to 
owner sh ip.

F inance leases ,  wh ich ef fect ive ly t rans fe r to the Group, subs tant ia l l y a l l  of the r i sk s and 
benef i t s  inc identa l  to owner sh ip of the leased i tem, a re capi ta l i sed at the p resent va lue of 
the min imum lease payments and amor t i sed over the per iod the Group i s  expected to benef i t 
f rom the use of the leased asset s .   Operat ing lease payments ,  where the les so r ef fect ive ly 
reta ins subs tant ia l l y a l l  of the r i sk s and benef i t s  of owner sh ip of the leased i tems, a re 
recogn i sed in operat ing p rof i t  o r los s over the lease te r m.

k. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Prov i s ion i s  made fo r benef i t s  accr u ing to employees in respect of sa la r ies and wages, annua l 
leave and long se r v ice leave when i t  i s  p robable that set t lement w i l l  be requ i red and they a re 
capable of be ing measu red re l iab ly.

SHORT TERM BENEF ITS
L iab i l i t ies a r i s ing in respect of wages, sa la r ies ,  annua l leave and other employee benef i t s 
expected to be who l ly set t led w i th in 12 months represent the amount wh ich the Group has 
a p resent ob l igat ion to pay resu l t ing f rom employees’ se r v ices p rov ided up to the repor t ing 
date. L iab i l i t ies have been ca lcu lated at the amounts expected to apply at the t ime of 
set t lement.  On - cost s a re inc luded in th i s  amount.

LONG TERM BENEF ITS
The l iab i l i t y fo r employee benef i t s  to long se r v ice leave represents the p resent va lue of 
the es t imated futu re cash out f lows to be made by the employer resu l t ing f rom employees’ 
se r v ices p rov ided up to the repor t ing date.

L iab i l i t ies fo r employee benef i t s  wh ich a re not expected to be set t led w i th in t welve months 
a re d i scounted us ing co rporate bond rates at repor t ing date, wh ich most c lose ly match the 
te r ms of matu r i t y of the re lated l iab i l i t ies .

In dete r min ing the l iab i l i t y fo r long se r v ice leave, cons iderat ion has been g iven to futu re 
increases in wage and sa la r y rates ,  and the Group’s exper ience w i th s taf f  depar tu res .  Re lated 
on - cost s have a l so been inc luded in the l iab i l i t y.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Share - based compensat ion benef i t s  a re p rov ided to employees v ia the Company’s Employee 
Opt ion P lan and an employee sha re scheme. Info r mat ion re lat ing to these schemes i s  set out 
in Note 21. 

The fa i r  va lue of opt ions g ranted under the Company’s Employee Opt ion P lan i s  recogn i sed 
as an employee benef i t  expense over the ves t ing per iod w i th a co r respond ing increase in 
the opt ion rese r ve. The fa i r  va lue i s  measu red at g rant date and recogn i sed over the per iod 
du r ing wh ich the employees become uncond i t iona l l y ent i t led to the opt ions .



44

RE VI E W OF 
OPER AT ION S

D I RECTORS’ 
RE PORT

CORPOR ATE 
GOVE RNANCE 

STATEME NT

D I RECTORS’ 
DECL AR AT ION

AN NUAL 
F I NANCIAL 

RE PORT

SHARE HOLDE R 
I N FORM AT I ON

CORPOR ATE 
D I RECTORY

CONTE NT S

The fa i r  va lue at g rant date i s  independent ly dete r mined us ing the B lack- Scho les p r ic ing 
model that takes into account the exerc i se p r ice, the te r m of the opt ion, the ves t ing and 
per fo r mance cr i te r ia,  the impact of d i lut ion, the non -t radeable natu re of the opt ion, the 
sha re p r ice at g rant date and expected p r ice vo lat i l i t y of the under ly ing sha re, the expected 
d iv idend y ie ld and the r i sk- f ree inte res t rate fo r the te r m of the opt ion.

At each repor t ing date, the ent i t y rev i ses i t s  es t imate of the number of opt ions that i s 
expected to become exerc i sab le. The employee benef i t  expense recogn i sed each per iod 
takes into account the most recent es t imate. Upon the exerc i se of opt ions ,  the ba lance of the 
sha re - based payments rese r ve re lat ing to those opt ions i s  t rans fe r red to sha re capi ta l .

The mar ket va lue of sha res i s sued to employees fo r no cash cons iderat ion under the employee 
sha re scheme i s  recogn i sed as an employee benef i t s  expense w i th a co r respond ing increase 
in equ i t y when the employees become ent i t led to the sha res . 

l .  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables represent the l iab i l i t ies fo r goods and se r v ices received by the 
ent i t y that remain unpa id at the end of the repor t ing per iod. The amounts a re unsecured 
and a re recogn i sed as a cu r rent l iab i l i t y w i th the amounts no r mal ly pa id w i th in 3 0 days of 
recogn i t ion. 

m. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
I n i t ia l  recogn i t ion and measu rement
F inancia l  ins t r uments ,  incorporat ing f inancia l  as set s and f inancia l  l iab i l i t ies ,  a re recogn i sed 
when the ent i t y becomes a par t y to the cont ractua l p rov i s ions of the ins t r ument.

F inancia l  ins t r uments a re in i t ia l l y measu red at fa i r  va lue p lus t ransact ions cos t s where the 
ins t r ument i s  not c las s i f ied as at fa i r  va lue th rough p rof i t  o r los s .   F inancia l  ins t r uments a re 
c las s i f ied and measu red as set out be low.

CLASSIF ICATION AND SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT
Loans and receivables  
Loans and receivab les a re non - der ivat ive f inancia l  as set s w i th f i xed o r dete r minab le 
payments that a re not quoted in an act ive mar ket and a re s tated at amor t i sed cos t us ing the 
ef fect ive inte res t rate method. 

F inancia l l iab i l i t ies 
Non - der ivat ive f inancia l  l iab i l i t ies (exc lud ing f inancia l  guarantees) a re subsequent ly 
measu red at amor t i sed cos t us ing the ef fect ive inte res t rate method.  

Trade receivables 
Trade receivab les a re recogn i sed in i t ia l l y at fa i r  va lue and subsequent ly measu red at 
amor t i sed cos t us ing the ef fect ive inte res t method, les s p rov i s ion fo r impai r ment.   Trade 
receivab les a re genera l l y due fo r set t lement w i th in 3 0 days .
 
Co l lectab i l i t y of t rade receivab les i s  rev iewed on an ongoing bas i s .  Debts wh ich a re known 
to be unco l lect ib le a re w r i t ten of f  by reducing the car r y ing amount d i rect ly.  An a l lowance 
account (p rov i s ion fo r impai r ment of t rade receivab les) i s  used when there i s  ob ject ive 
ev idence that the Group w i l l  not be ab le to co l lect a l l  amounts due accord ing to the o r ig ina l 
te r ms of the receivab les .  S ign i f icant f inancia l  d i f f icu l t ies of the debto r,  p robabi l i t y that 
the debto r w i l l  ente r bank r uptcy o r f inancia l  reo rgan i sat ion, and defau l t  o r de l inquency in 
payments (more than 3 0 days overdue) a re cons idered ind icato r s that the t rade receivab le 
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i s  impa i red. The amount of the impai r ment a l lowance i s  the d i f fe rence bet ween the asset’s 
ca r r y ing amount and the p resent va lue of es t imated futu re cash f lows, d i scounted at 
the o r ig ina l ef fect ive inte res t rate. Cash f lows re lat ing to sho r t - te r m receivab les a re not 
d i scounted i f  the ef fect of d i scount ing i s  immater ia l .

The amount of the impai r ment los s i s  recogn i sed in the s tatement of p rof i t  o r  los s and 
other comprehens ive income w ith in other expenses .  When a t rade receivab le fo r wh ich an 
impai r ment a l lowance had been recogn i sed becomes unco l lect ib le in a subsequent per iod, 
i t  i s  w r i t ten of f  aga ins t the a l lowance account.  Subsequent recover ies of amounts p rev ious ly 
w r i t ten of f  a re cred i ted aga ins t genera l  and admin i s t rat ive expenses in the s tatement of 
p rof i t  o r  los s and other comprehens ive income.

IMPAIRMENT OF F INANCIAL ASSETS
At each repor t ing date, the Group assesses whether the re i s  ob ject ive ev idence that a 
f inancia l  ins t r ument has been impai red.

The car r y ing amount of f inancia l  as set s inc lud ing unco l lect ib le t rade receivab les i s  reduced 
by the impai r ment los s th rough the use of an a l lowance account.   Subsequent recover ies of 
amounts p rev ious ly w r i t ten of f  a re cred i ted aga ins t the a l lowance account.   Changes in the 
car r y ing amount of the a l lowance account a re recogn i sed in p rof i t  o r  los s .

I f  i n a subsequent per iod, the amount of the impai r ment los s decreases and the decrease 
can be re lated ob ject ive ly to an event occur r ing af te r the impai r ment was recogn i sed, the 
p rev ious ly recogn i sed impai r ment los s i s  rever sed th rough p rof i t  o r los s .
 
F INANCIAL GUARANTEES
Where mater ia l ,  f i nancia l  guarantees i s sued that requ i re the i s suer to make speci f ied 
payments to re imbur se the ho lder fo r a los s i t  i ncu r s because a speci f ied debto r fa i l s  to make 
payment when due a re recogn i sed as a f inancia l  l iab i l i t y at fa i r  va lue on in i t ia l  recogn i t ion. 

The fa i r  va lue of f inancia l  guarantee cont racts has been assessed us ing the p robabi l i t y 
weighted d i scounted cash f low approach. The p robabi l i t y has been based on:

• the l i ke l ihood of the guaranteed par t y defau l t ing in a 12- month per iod;
• the p ropor t ion of the exposu re that i s  not expected to be recovered due to the 

guaranteed par t y defau l t ing; and
• the max imum los s exposed i f  the guaranteed par t y were to defau l t.

F inancia l  guarantees a re subsequent ly measu red at the h igher of the bes t es t imate of the 
ob l igat ion  in accordance w i th A ASB 137: P rov i s ions ,  Cont ingent L iab i l i t ies and Cont ingent 
Asset s and the amount in i t ia l l y recogn i sed les s ,  when appropr iate, cumulat ive amor t i sat ion 
in accordance w i th A ASB 118: Revenue. Where the ent i t y g ives guarantees in exchange fo r a 
fee, revenue i s  recogn i sed in accordance w i th A ASB 118 .

DERECOGNIT ION 
F inancia l  as set s a re derecogn i sed where the cont ractua l r ight s to receipt of cash f lows 
exp i res o r the asset i s  t rans fe r red to another par t y whereby the ent i t y no longer has any 
s ign i f icant cont inu ing invo lvement in the r i sk s and benef i t s  as sociated w i th the asset. 
F inancia l  l iab i l i t ies a re derecogn i sed where the re lated ob l igat ions a re e i the r d i scharged, 
cancel led o r exp i re.  The d i f fe rence bet ween the car r y ing va lue of the f inancia l  l iab i l i t y 
ex t ingu i shed o r t rans fe r red to another par t y and the fa i r  va lue of cons iderat ion pa id, 
inc lud ing the t rans fe r of non - cash asset s o r l iab i l i t ies as sumed i s  recogn i sed in p rof i t  o r  los s .
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n. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
I s sued and pa id up capi ta l  i s  recogn i sed at the fa i r  va lue of the cons iderat ion received by 
the Company.
 
Transact ion cos t s a r i s ing on the i s sue of equ i t y ins t r uments a re recogn i sed d i rect ly in equ i t y 
as a reduct ion of the p roceeds of the equ i t y ins t r uments to wh ich the cos t s re late.

o. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Bas ic earn ings per sha re (EPS) i s  ca lcu lated as the net resu l t  at t r ibutab le to member s , 
ad jus ted to exc lude cos t s of se r v ic ing equ i t y (other than d iv idends),  d iv ided by the weighted 
average number of o rd ina r y sha res ,  ad jus ted fo r any bonus e lement. 

D i luted EPS i s  ca lcu lated as the net resu l t  at t r ibutab le to member s ,  ad jus ted fo r : 
• cos t s of se r v ic ing equ i t y (other than d iv idends) and p refe rence sha re d iv idends;
• the af te r- tax ef fect of d iv idends and inte res t as sociated w i th d i lut ive potent ia l  o rd ina r y 

sha res  that have been recogn i sed as expenses;  and
• other non - d i sc ret ionar y changes in revenues o r expenses du r ing the per iod that wou ld 

resu l t  f rom the d i lut ion of potent ia l  o rd ina r y sha res;
d iv ided by the weighted average number of o rd ina r y sha res and d i lut ive potent ia l  o rd ina r y 
sha res ,  ad jus ted fo r any bonus e lement.

p. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equ iva lents inc ludes cash on hand, depos i t s  he ld at ca l l  w i th f inancia l 
ins t i tut ions ,  other sho r t - te r m, h igh ly l iqu id inves tments w i th o r ig ina l matu r i t ies w i th th ree 
months o r les s that a re read i ly conver t ib le to known amounts of cash and wh ich a re sub ject 
to an ins ign i f icant r i sk of changes in va lue.

q. GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Government g rants a re recogn i sed at fa i r  va lue where there i s  reasonable assu rance that the 
g rant w i l l  be received and a l l  g rant cond i t ions w i l l  be met.  G rants re lat ing to expense i tems 
a re recogn i sed as income on the date of rece ipt of the g rant.

The Government has the r ight to rev iew g rants pa id and may c lawback funds in the event of 
an excess c la im.

Research and Deve lopment Grant
The Company received a federa l  government Research and Deve lopment Tax Incent ive of 
$ 423,0 02 (2016:$ 518,0 89) in re lat ion to i t s  research and deve lopment act iv i t ies fo r the 2017 
f inancia l  year.

r .  BORROWING COSTS
Bor row ing cos t s a re expensed as incu r red.

s.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The D i recto r s eva luate es t imates and judgments incorporated into the f inancia l  repor t 
based on h i s to r ica l  knowledge and best ava i lab le cu r rent info r mat ion. E s t imates as sume 
a reasonable expectat ion of futu re events and a re based on cu r rent t rends and economic 
data, obta ined both ex te rna l l y and w i th in the Group.
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Key es t imates
( i )  Impai r ment
The Group assesses impai r ment at the end of each repor t ing per iod by eva luat ing cond i t ions 
and events speci f ic to the Group that may be ind icat ive of impai r ment t r igger s .  Recoverab le 
amounts of re levant as set s a re reassessed us ing va lue - in - use ca lcu lat ions wh ich incorporate 
va r ious key assumpt ions .   Impai r ment tes t s  a re car r ied out on intang ib les ,  rece ivab les and 
subs id ia r ies .

Wi th respect to cash f low p ro ject ions in Aus t ra l ia and over seas,  modest g row th rates have 
been facto red into va luat ion model s fo r the nex t f ive year s on the bas i s  of management’s 
expectat ions a round the Group’s cont inued ab i l i t y to captu re mar ket sha re f rom compet i to r s . 

Key judgments
 ( i )  P rov i s ion fo r Impai r ment of Receivab les
Prov i s ion fo r impai r ment of t rade receivab les has been inc luded in Note 6 Receivab les .

t .  GOING CONCERN
As at 3 0 June 2017 the company has cash rese r ves of $2,54 3,412 (2016 res tated: $1,149,028) 
and a net cu r rent as set pos i t ion of $1,593,73 0 (2016: $209,73 8).  The cu r rent year p rof i t  fo r the 
per iod was $1,925,760 af te r rece ipt of $5,0 0 0,0 0 0 re lated to ou r Ch i ron sof t ware d i spute (2016 
Res tated: $107,94 5).

The annua l f inancia l  repor t has been p repared on a go ing concern bas i s  wh ich assumes 
that the conso l idated ent i t y w i l l  be ab le to meet the i r  debts as and when they fa l l  due. The 
fo l low ing mat te r s have been cons idered by the d i recto r s in dete r min ing the appropr iateness 
of the go ing concern bas i s  of p reparat ion in the f inancia l  s tatements:

Success in cont inued operat ions
I n the cu r rent f inancia l  year,  the Group was success fu l  in obta in ing cont racts w i th 
Government agencies and la rge communit y hea l th o rgan i sat ions .  Th i s  i s  expected to increase 
cashf lows re lated to the operat ions of the ent i t y. 

Management a l so have the ab i l i t y to reduce operat ing cos t s in re lat ion to deve lopment 
shou ld the need a r i se. 

Increases in expected co l lect ions w i th the ab i l i t y to reduce operat ing cos t s in re lat ion to 
deve lopment w i l l  a l low the g roup to increase i t s  operat ing cash f lows.

Expans ion in to the ASEAN reg ion
The Group has expanded i t s  act iv i t ies in the ASE AN reg ion (Malays ia, S ingapore, Indones ia, 
Tha i land, V ietnam). Management expect to leverage th i s  pos i t ion to increase operat ing 
cashf lows th rough the sa le of sof t ware and se r v ices ta rgeted towards inte rnat iona l mar kets . 

Avai lab i l i t y o f F inance
The Group, th rough i t s  f inancia l  ins t i tut ions ,  may be ab le to acqu i re add i t iona l f inancia l 
suppor t i f  so requ i red. 

On the bas i s  of these facto r s ,  the D i recto r s be l ieve that the go ing concern bas i s  of 
p reparat ion i s  appropr iate and the Group w i l l  be ab le to repay the i r  debts as and when they 
fa l l  due. In the event that the Group cannot cont inue as a go ing concern, i t  may not rea l i se 
i t s  as set s and set t le i t s  l iab i l i t ies in the no r mal cour se of operat ions and at the amounts s tated 
in the f inancia l  s tatements .
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u. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING 
INTERPRETATIONS

Account ing Standards i s sued by the A ASB that a re not yet mandato r i l y app l icab le to the 
Group, together w i th an assessment of the potent ia l  impact of such p ronouncements on the 
Group when adopted in futu re per iods,  a re d i scussed be low:

– AASB 9: F inancia l Ins t ruments and associa ted Amending Standards (appl icab le to 
annual repor t ing per iods beg inn ing on o r a f te r 1 Januar y 2 018)
A ASB 9 rep laces A ASB 139 F inancia l  Ins t r uments:  Recogn i t ion and Measu rement and 
inc ludes rev i sed requ i rements fo r the c las s i f icat ion and measu rement of f inancia l 
ins t r uments ,  rev i sed recogn i t ion and de - recogn i t ion requ i rements fo r f inancia l 
ins t r uments ,  rev i sed impai r ment requ i rements and s impl i f ied requ i rements fo r hedge 
account ing.

The rev i sed requ i rements inc lude: 
 - s impl i f icat ions to the c las s i f icat ion of f inancia l  as set s 
 - s impl i f icat ions to the account ing of embedded der ivat ives 
 - an expected los s impai r ment model 
 - the i r revocable e lect ion to recogn i se ga ins and los ses on inves tments in equ i t y 

ins t r uments that a re not he ld fo r t rad ing in other comprehens ive income. 
 - a new model fo r hedge account ing that w i l l  a l low g reate r f lex ib i l i t y in the ab i l i t y to 

hedge r i sk ,  pa r t icu la r ly w i th respect to hedges of non - f inancia l  i tems. 

The f inancia l  as set s and l iab i l i t ies of the Group cons i s t  of cash, rece ivab les and 
payables .  Therefo re, the d i recto r s do not expect a mater ia l  impact on t rans i t ion to 
A ASB 9.

– AASB 15: Revenue f rom Cont ract s w i th Cus tomers (appl icab le to annual repor t ing 
per iods beg inn ing on o r a f te r 1 Januar y 2 018) 
Th i s  Standard w i l l  rep lace the cu r rent account ing requ i rements app l icab le to revenue 
w i th a s ing le, p r inc ip les - based model .  E xcept fo r a l im i ted number of except ions , 
inc lud ing leases ,  the new revenue model in A ASB 15 w i l l  app ly to a l l  cont racts w i th 
cus tomer s as wel l  as non - moneta r y exchanges bet ween ent i t ies in the same l ine of 
bus iness to faci l i tate sa les to cus tomer s and potent ia l  cus tomer s .

The core p r inc ip le of the Standard i s  that an ent i t y w i l l  recogn i se revenue to depict 
the t rans fe r of p romi sed goods o r se r v ices to cus tomer s in an amount that ref lects the 
cons iderat ion to wh ich the ent i t y expects to be ent i t led in exchange fo r the goods o r 
se r v ices .  To ach ieve th i s  ob ject ive, A ASB 15 p rov ides the fo l low ing f ive - s tep p rocess:

- ident i f y the cont ract(s)  w i th a cus tomer ;

- ident i f y the per fo r mance ob l igat ions in the cont ract(s);

- dete r mine the t ransact ion p r ice;

- a l locate the t ransact ion p r ice to the per fo r mance ob l igat ions in the cont ract(s); 
and

- recogn i se revenue when (o r as) the per fo r mance ob l igat ions a re sat i s f ied.

The d i recto r s have made a p re l im ina r y as sessment of the impact as fo l lows:

New L icenses:
New L icenses under A ASB 15 w i l l  be recogn i sed over the se r v ice per iod in wh ich they 
fa l l  due. Th i s  i s  cons i s tent w i th the approach taken fo r recu r r ing revenue. Income 
received in advance fo r th i s  se r v ice per iod w i l l  be c las s i f ied as a cu r rent l iab i l i t y.
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Recur r ing l icenses:
There w i l l  be no change under A ASB 15 fo r recogn i t ion of recu r r ing l icenses .  These a re 
recogn i sed over the se r v ice per iod of the cont ract.  Income received in advance fo r 
th i s  se r v ice per iod w i l l  be c las s i f ied as a cu r rent l iab i l i t y.

PROFESSIONAL FEES:
Fo r p rofess iona l se r v ice of fe red to ex i s t ing c l ient s fo r ad - hoc se r v ices revenue w i l l  be 
recogn i sed when the per fo r mance ob l igat ion i s  met wh ich wou ld no r mal ly occur when 
se r v ices a re rendered. Fo r p rofess iona l se r v ices per fo r med fo r new c l ient s re lated to the setup 
of sof t ware, revenue w i l l  recogn i sed over the assessed expected l i fe of the c l ient.  Our cu r rent 
as sessment of c l ient l i fe i s  fo r f i ve year s .  Th i s  i s  based on ou r longest cont ract per iod of fe red 
as wel l  as management’s as ses sment of c l ient l i fe. 

OTHER INCOME:
Other income w i l l  not be s ign i f icant ly impacted by A ASB 15. I t  w i l l  be recogn i sed as income 
when the ident i f ied per fo r mance ob l igat ions have been sat i s f ied. 

The ef fect on revenue (conso l idated) accounts i s  as fo l lows:

Account

2017 as 
per current 
accounting 
standards

$

Potential 
restatement 

under AASB 15 
requirements

$

2017 Restated 
under AASB 15 
requirements

$
Profi t and Loss

Revenue from the sale of 
licenses and maintenance 
contracts

8,415,775 (281,984)* 8,133,791

Revenue from professional 
services

1,191,795 (443,251)* 748,544

Statement of Financial 
Position

Current Liabilities. - 725,235 725,235

*Res tatement of revenue i s  based on the changes ant ic ipated by A ASB 15 and by the 
assumpt ions made by management as at p reparat ion date of the f inancia l  s tatements . 
As sumpt ions may be reassessed in the futu re account ing per iod’s resu l t s  in d i f fe rences in the 
expected res tatement of revenue ba lances fo r the 2017 F inancia l  Year.

– AASB 16: Leases (appl icab le to annual repor t ing per iods beg inn ing on o r a f te r 1 
Januar y 2 019) .
A ASB 16 w i l l  rep lace the cu r rent account ing requ i rements app l icab le to leases in 
A ASB 117: Leases and re lated Inte rp retat ions .  A ASB 16 int roduces a s ing le les see 
account ing model that e l im inates the requ i rement fo r leases to be c las s i f ied as 
operat ing o r f inance leases .

The main changes int roduced by the new Standard inc lude:

- recogn i t ion of a r ight- to - use asset and l iab i l i t y fo r a l l  leases (exc lud ing sho r t - te r m 
leases w i th les s than 12 months of tenu re and leases re lat ing to low-va lue asset s);

- depreciat ion of r ight- to - use asset s in l i ne w i th A ASB 116: Proper t y,  P lant and 
Equ ipment  i n p rof i t  o r  los s and unwind ing of the l iab i l i t y in p r inc ipa l and inte res t 
components;
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- var iab le lease payments that depend on an index o r a rate a re inc luded in 
the in i t ia l  measu rement of the lease l iab i l i t y us ing the index o r rate at the 
commencement date;

- by apply ing a p ract ica l exped ient,  a les see i s  per mit ted to e lect not to separate 
non - lease components and ins tead account fo r a l l  components as a lease; and

- addit iona l d i sc losu re requ i rements .

The d i recto r s expect that the adopt ion of A ASB 16 w i l l  resu l t  in lease asset s and 
l iab i l i t ies be ing recogn i sed on ba lance sheet and a change in how re lated expenses 
a re incu r red. The f inancia l  impact of th i s  has not yet been dete r mined. 

– AASB 2 016-1: Amendments to Aus t ra l ian Account ing Standards – Recogn i t ion o f 
Defe r red Tax Asset s fo r Un rea l i sed Losses (appl icab le fo r repor t ing per iods beg inn ing 
on o r a f te r 1 Januar y 2 017) 
Th i s  s tandard c la r i f ies that defe r red tax asset recogn i t ion on un rea l i sed los ses a r i s ing 
f rom asset s measu red at fa i r  va lue in the f inancia l  s tatements shou ld car r ied out af te r 
tak ing into account any res t r ict ions imposed under tax laws on the sou rce of taxab le 
p rof i t s  aga ins t wh ich the deduct ib le tempora r y d i f fe rences can be of f set.  Fu r ther 
the futu re taxab le p rof i t s  shou ld not inc lude any amounts that a re rever sa l  of the 
deduct ib le tempora r y d i f fe rences.

A ASB 2016 -1 i s  not expected to impact the Group’s f inancia l  s tatements s ince 
the d i recto r s be l ieve that the Group’s account ing po l icy fo r defe r red tax asset in 
re lat ion to asset s measu red at fa i r  va lue i s  a l ready in compl iance w i th the s tandard. 
Fu r ther more, the Group does not have any s ign i f icant as set s measu red at fa i r  va lue.

– AASB 2 016-5: Amendments to Aus t ra l ian Account ing Standards – Class i f icat ion and 
Measu rement o f Sha re-based Payment T ransact ions (appl icab le f rom 1s t Januar y 
2 018)
Th i s  s tandard p rov ides gu idance on t reatment of ves t ing cond i t ions in a cash - set t led 
sha re based payment a r rangement that a re s im i la r to what has been p rescr ibed fo r 
equ i t y set t led sha re based payment a r rangements .  I t  a l so c la r i f ies that,  sub ject to 
cer ta in except ions ,  sha re based payment t ransact ions w i th net- set t lement featu re 
on account of w i thho ld ing tax ob l igat ions shou ld be c las s i f ied in ent i ret y as equ i t y 
set t led sha re based payment.

S ince the Group does not have a po l icy of cash - set t led sha re based awards o r net-
set t lement featu res in equ i t y set t led p lans ,  th i s  s tandard i s  not expected to impact 
the Group’s f inancia l  s tatements .

v. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR PERIOD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SA HEALTH L I T IGATION

The lega l set t lement sum of $5 mi l l ion received f rom the reso lut ion of the Ch i ron Sof t ware 
l i t igat ion had been p ropor t ionate ly recogn i sed as revenue fo r the year ended 3 0 June 2016.
Th i s  has been ident i f ied as an e r ro r g iven the natu re of the set t lement where i t  re lated to 
compensat ion in damages wh ich shou ld be recogn i sed as revenue on the date of rece ipt 
wh ich occur red in August 2016. There were no fu r ther per fo r mance ob l igat ions requ i red f rom 
Globa l Hea l th to p rov ide se r v ices to SA Hea l th.  Accord ing ly,  the set t lement sum of $5m shou ld 
be recogn i sed immediate ly as revenue on receipt.   The impact of the above res tatement has 
resu l ted in $1.25 mi l l ion be ing derecogn i sed fo r the year ended June 2016 and res tated in the 
2017 f inancia l  year.
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30 June 2016 Restatement Impact
Receivables (1,250,000) Decrease

Revenue (1,250,000) Decrease

In add i t ion, $609,527 of capi ta l i sed lega l cos t s were mi sc las s i f ied to intang ib le asset s 
re lat ing to the SA Hea l th l i t igat ion f rom wh ich an amor t i sat ion charge of $152,3 82 had 
been recogn i sed in p rof i t  o r  los s .  These capi ta l i sed lega l cos t s re late to the p rotect ion of 
inte l lectua l p roper t y.  Th i s  had been rec lass i f ied as other as set s re lat ing to the year ended 3 0 
June 2016. The amor t i sat ion charge on the capi ta l i sed lega l cos t s had been derecogn i sed in 
the 2016 f inancia l  year.

30 June 2016 Restatement Impact
Intangible Assets (457,145) Decrease

Other assets 609,527 Increase

Amortisation expense (152,382) Decrease

CAPITALISATION OF OVERHEAD EXPENDITURE
Genera l overhead cost s not d i rect ly at t r ibutab le to the deve lopment of inte rna l l y generated 
intang ib le asset s had been incor rect ly capi ta l i sed by $14 4,4 36 and $119,497 du r ing the 
f inancia l  year s ended 3 0 June 2015 and 3 0 June 2016 respect ive ly.  These cos t s have been 
res tated as an expense in the co r rect repor t ing per iod and have accord ing ly been de -
recogn i sed f rom intang ib le asset s .

30 June 2016 Restatement Impact
Intangible Assets (263,933) Decrease

Accumulated Losses 144,436 Increase

Operating Expenses 119,497 Increase

ABAKI SOFTWARE PURCHASE
The pu rchase of the Abak i  sof t ware wh ich occur red in the year ended 3 0 June 2016 had 
been inappropr iate ly recorded on in i t ia l  recogn i t ion. Th i s  resu l ted in an under s tatement 
of intang ib le asset s by $ 328,511. The sof t ware was a l so mi sc las s i f ied as other as set s in the 
conso l idated s tatement of f inancia l  pos i t ion as at 3 0 June 2016 resu l t ing in a mi sc las s i f icat ion 
e r ro r of $171,4 89. An amor t i sat ion charge of $5 0,094 had a l so been res tated in the 2016 
f inancia l  year to ref lect the subsequent measu rement of the intang ib le asset.

30 June 2016 Restatement Impact
Intangible Assets 449,906 Increase

Other Assets (171,489) Decrease

Amortisation expense 50,094 Increase

Trade payable (328,511) Increase

w. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
The non - cont ro l l i ng inte res t in equ i t y had been over s tated by $136,66 4 as at 3 0 June 2016 
a r i s ing f rom a mi sa l locat ion of the p rof i t  o r  los s and other comprehens ive income bet ween 
owner s of the parent and non - cont ro l l i ng inte res t p r io r  to that per iod. Th i s  has been res tated 
in the ear l ies t  comparat ive per iod p ract icab le, wh ich has been ident i f ied as 3 0 June 2015. 
The impact had been dete r mined as fo l lows: 
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30 June 2016 Restatement Impact
Non-controlling interest 136,664 Increase

Accumulated losses (136,664) Decrease

The cumulat ive impact on the f inancia l  s tatements a r i s ing f rom the res tatements on the p r io r 
per iod e r ro r s a re d i sc losed as fo l lows:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF F INANCIAL POSIT ION

 30 June 
2015

Increase/ 
(Decrease)

30 June 
2015 

(Restated)
30 June 

2016
Increase/ 

(Decrease)
30 June 

2016 
(Restated)

Receivables 931,730 0 931,730 2,786,734 (1,250,000) 1,536,734

Other Assets 235,989 0 235,989 403,680 438,038 841,718

Intangibles 4,025,198 (144,436) 3,880,762 5,118,324 (271,172) 4,847,152

Payables 718,130 0 718,130 1,067,257 328,511 1,395,768

Net Assets 3,628,006 (144,436) 3,483,570 5,056,903 (1,411,645) 3,645,258
Accumulated 

losses
(16,969,316) (281,100) (17,250,416) (15,596,046) (1,548,309) (17,144,355)

Non-controlling 
interest

(138,176) 136,664 (1,512) (136,256) 136,664 408

Total Equity 3,628,006 (144,436) 3,483,570 5,056,903 (1,411,645) 3,645,258

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME

 30 June 
2015

Increase/ 
(Decrease)

30 June 
2015 

(Restated)
30 June 

2016
Increase/ 

(Decrease)
30 June 

2016 
(Restated)

Revenue from 
the sale of 
licenses and 
maintenance 
contracts 

3,504,313 0 3,504,313 4,837,110 (1,250,000) 3,587,110

General and 
administration 
costs

-777,354 -144,436 -921,790 -838,026 (119,497) (957,523)

Amortisation -211,371 0 -211,371 -364,331 102,288 -262,043

Prof i t 
before 

income tax
1,059,907 -144,436 915,471 1,375,154 (1,267,209) 107,945

Income tax 
expense

0  0   0

Net prof i t 
for the 
period

1,059,907 -144,436 915,471 1,375,154 (1,267,209) 107,945
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2. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
 

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Revenue
Sales of licenses 906,187 800,224

Maintenance contracts 2,509,588 2,786,886

Professional services 1,191,795 906,187

4,607,570 4,493,297

Other Income

Settlement on Chiron Software litigation  - refer note 1(v) 5,000,000 -

Interest received on fi nancial assets 43,206 15,069

Research and Development grants 423,002 518,089

Other 226,403 172,995

5,692,611 706,153

10,300,181 5,199,450

3. EXPENSES
 

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Prof i t  before income tax includes the fol lowing 
specif ic expenses
Direct external costs 263,754 170,475

Depreciation of non-current assets 87,931 122,048

Amortisation of Intangibles 266,021 262,043

Impairment of Intangibles 917,381 -

Wages and salaries, net of Capitalised Development cost 4,954,609 3,496,079

Travel and accommodation 116,222 118,502

Operating lease expense 149,700 161,794

Finance cost (interest expense and bank charges) 146,500 97,568
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4. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
The major components of tax expense comprise:
Current Tax (481,842) -

Deferred Tax 685,816 -

The prima facie tax on prof i t  f rom ordinary activi t ies 
before income tax is  reconciled to the income tax as 
fol lows:
Profi t from continuing operations before income tax 1,932,019 -

Prima facie tax/ (tax benefi t) at 30% (2016: 30%) 579,606 -

Add tax effect of:

AIFRS adjustments (non-deductible) 19,965 -

Foreign exchange taxable gains - -

Entertainment (non-deductible) 17,712 -

Entertainment (non-deductible) 17,712 -

Legal expenses (non-deductible) 5,815 -

Prior period differences 1,122,211 -

Less tax effect of:

Tax losses deducted (1,098,248) -

Grants receivable (126,901) -

Refundable tax offsets (481,842) -

Tax losses recognised (349,507) -

Income tax expense recognised 203,974 -

Current and Deferred tax balances:
Assets:
CURRENT/NON-CURRENT

Current tax asset 481,842 -

Deferred tax asset 596,599 -

Liabi l i t ies:
Deferred tax liability 1,282,415 -
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5.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Cash at bank and on hand 384,966 1,149,028

Deposits at call 2,158,446 -

Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 2,543,412 1,149,028

6.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Current

Trade receivables 1,850,658 1,537,645

Impairment of receivables (29,560) (911)

1,821,098 1,536,734

Non-Current

Trade receivables 140,911 276,645

140,911 276,645

1,962,009 1,813,379

PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF CURRENT TRADE RECE IVABLES
Cur rent t rade receivab les a re non - inte res t bear ing receivab les and genera l l y on 3 0 - day 
te r ms. A p rov i s ion fo r impai r ment i s  recogn i sed when there i s  ob ject ive ev idence that an 
ind iv idua l t rade receivab le i s  impa i red. 

Movements in the p rov i s ion a re as fo l lows:

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Balance at beginning of year 911 911

   Charge for year 28,649 -

   Amounts written off - -

   Amounts reversed - -

Closing balance 29,560 911
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TRADE RECE IVABLES - IMPAIRED
As at 3 0 June 2017, the fo l low ing t rade receivab les of the Group were past due and impai red 
(2016: $911).  The ageing of t rade receivab les wh ich have been impai red a re as fo l lows: 

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
1 to 3 months - -

3 to 6 months - -

Over 6 months 29,560 911

TRADE RECE IVABLES THAT ARE PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED
As of 3 0 June 2017, t rade receivab les of $ 490,467 (2016: $ 378,578) were past due but not 
impai red. These re late to a number of independent cus tomer s fo r whom there i s  no recent 
h i s to r y of defau l t.  The ageing ana lys i s  of these t rade receivab les i s  as fo l lows:

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
1 month 150,759 66,411

2-3 months 131,287 193,518

Over 3 months 208,421 118,649

FAIR VALUES
The car r y ing va lue les s impai r ment p rov i s ion of t rade receivab les a re assumed to 
approx imate fa i r  va lue.

7. OTHER ASSETS
 

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Current

Prepayments 77,504 116,089

SA Health – legal IP protection costs - 609,527

Security bonds 108,465 116,102

185,969 841,718
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT SUMMARY
 

Property,  plant and equipment
Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
 Leasehold improvements – at cost 178,787 178,787

 Accumulated amortisation (117,727) (92,065)

61,060 86,722
 Plant and equipment – at cost 344,221 278,165

 Accumulated depreciation (254,543) (192,274)

89,678 85,891
Total property,  plant and equipment 150,738 172,613

b. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT RECONCILIATION
 

Movement in Carrying Amount
Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Leasehold improvements
Carrying amount – as at 1 July 86,722 132,448

Additions - 5,570

Amortisation (25,662) (51,296)

Carrying amount – as at 30 June 61,060 86,722

Plant and equipment 
Carrying amount – as at 1 July 85,891 14,523

Additions 66,056 143,703

Disposal, net - (1,583)

Depreciation (62,269) (70,752)

Carrying amount – as at 30 June 89,678 85,891
Total property,  plant and equipment 150,738 172,613
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

a. INTANGIBLE ASSET SUMMARY

Intangible assets
Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

Restated
$

Products under development – at cost* 3,946,143 2,838,462

Developed Products

Cost 2,844,203 2,797,715

Accumulated amortisation (1,055,045) (789,024)

Accumulated Impairment (917,381) -

Total Developed Products 871,777 2,008,691
Total intangible assets 4,817,920 4,847,152

* Th i s  represents cos t s a r i s ing f rom the deve lopment phase of inte rna l p ro jects .  Deve lopment 
cos t s incorporate d i rect ly at t r ibutab le employee benef i t  expenses ,  fees to reg i s te r a lega l 
r ight and other d i rect mater ia l  and se r v ices cos t s to deve lop the p ro ject.

Deve loped p roducts have f in i te usefu l  l i fe of 10 year s wh ich a re amor t i sed on a s t ra ight l i ne 
bas i s  over the i r  ef fect ive l i fe.  The cu r rent amor t i sat ion charges fo r intang ib le asset s have 
been separate ly p resented as amor t i sat ion expense in the conso l idated s tatement of p rof i t  o r 
los s and other comprehens ive income. 

b. INTANGIBLE ASSET RECONCILIATION

Movement in Carrying 
Amount

Products under 
Development

$

Developed Products
$

Total
$

Carrying amount – as at 1 July 2015

Restated
1,826,430 2,270,733 4,097,163

Additions 1,012,032 - 1,012,032

Transfer of commercialised product - - -

Disposals - - -

Amortisation charge - (262,043) (262,043)

Impairment - - -

Carrying amount – as at 30 
June 2016
Restated

2,838,462 2,008,690 4,847,152

Carrying amount – as at 1 July 2016 2,838,462 2,008,690 4,847,152

Additions 1,107,682 46,487 1,154,169

Transfer of commercialised product - - -

Disposals - - -

Amortisation charge - (266,020) (266,020)

Impairment - (917,381) (917,381)

Carrying amount – as at 30 
June 2017 3,946,144 871,776 4,817,920
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c. IMPAIRMENT DISCLOSURES

DEVELOPED PRODUCTS
As at 3 0 June 2017, an impai r ment charge of $917,3 81 had been recogn i sed in re lat ion to 
cer ta in deve loped p roducts due to impai r ment ind icato r s ident i f ied f rom underper fo r ming 
asset s .  Fo recasted cash f lows, be ing an es t imate of the recoverab le amount of the asset s had 
ind icated a def ic iency aga ins t the asset’s ca r r y ing va lues ,  p r inc ipa l l y d r iven by the bus iness 
cha l lenges faced in the sof t ware and techno log ica l env i ronment. 
The impai r ment tes t ing had been per fo r med based on the cash generat ing un i t s  ident i f ied 
by sof t ware p roduct l i nes .  These p roduct l i nes fa l l  w i th in the acute and non - acute repor t ing 
segments as out l ined in Note 26 . The impai r ment charge recogn i sed w i th respect to each 
sof t ware p roduct l i ne a re:

Year ended
30 June 

2017
ReferralNet MasterCare Li fecard Abaki

Streamlining 
the Patient 

Journey
Total

Impairment 
charge

(733,381) - (184,000) - - (917,381)

The impai r ment charge recogn i sed w i th respect to Refe r ra lNet and L i fecard fo r m par t of the 
non - acute repor t ing segment.

The recoverab le amount of each cash - generat ing un i t  above i s  dete r mined based on va lue -
in - use ca lcu lat ions .  Va lue - in - use i s  ca lcu lated based on the p resent va lue of cash f low 
p ro ject ions over a 5 year per iod. The cash f lows a re d i scounted us ing a p re -tax d i scount rate 
of 10% .

The fo l low ing key assumpt ions were used in the va lue - in - use ca lcu lat ions:
P re -tax d i scount rate of 10%

 - Grow th rates
 - Employment cos t s
 - No te r mina l g row th rate to ex t rapo late cash f lows beyond the fo recast per iod* 

* The sof t ware p roduct l i nes have a f in i te usefu l  l i fe,  hence no te r mina l va lue had been 
inc luded at the end of the 5 year per iod in the recoverab le amount ca lcu lat ion.

Management has based the va lue - in - use ca lcu lat ions on budgets fo r each repor t ing 
segment.  These budgets use h i s to r ica l  weighted average g row th rates to p ro ject revenue. 
Cost s a re ca lcu lated tak ing into account h i s to r ica l  g ros s marg ins as wel l  as es t imated 
weighted average inf lat ion rates over the per iod, wh ich a re cons i s tent w i th inf lat ion rates 
appl icab le to the locat ions in wh ich the Group operates . 
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10. DEFERRED TAX BALANCES

Deferred tax asset
Opening 
Balance

$

Recognised in 
Prof i t  or Loss

$

Recognised 
directly in 

Equity
$

Total
$

Opening balance at 1 July 2016 - - - -
Future income tax benefi ts attributable to 
tax losses - 349,507 - 349,507
Accrued expenses

- 51,216 - 51,216
Provisions

- 195,876 - 195,876
Closing balance at 30 June 2017* - 596,599 - 596,599

Deferred tax l iabi l i ty

Opening 
Balance

000’s
$

Recognised in 
Prof i t  or Loss

000’s
$

Recognised 
directly in 

Equity
000’s

$

Total
000’s

$

Opening balance at 1 July 2016 - - - -
Prepayments and other assets - 985 - 985
Intangible assets - 1,281,430 - 1,281,430
Closing balance at 30 June 2017* - 1,282,415 - 1,282,415

* Th i s  i s  the f i r s t  year f rom wh ich tax ef fect ive account ing had been appl ied in dete r min ing 
the respect ive defe r red asset s and l iab i l i t ies as at 3 0 June 2017.

11. PAYABLES

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Trade creditors 469,635 712,326

Other creditors and accruals 609,647 683,442

1,079,282 1,395,768
The car r y ing va lue of t rade payables i s  as sumed to approx imate fa i r  va lue.

12. INTEREST BEARING LIABIL IT IES

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Current

Borrowings 389,880 355,351

389,880 355,351

Non-Current

Borrowings 1,078,880 1,386,378

1,078,880 1,386,378
I nte res t bear ing l iab i l i t ies a re p rov ided to Group on te r ms of 5 year s and an average ef fect ive 
inte res t rate of 8 .60% .



61

RE VI E W OF 
OPER AT ION S

D I RECTORS’ 
RE PORT

CORPOR ATE 
GOVE RNANCE 

STATEME NT

D I RECTORS’ 
DECL AR AT ION

AN NUAL 
F I NANCIAL 

RE PORT

SHARE HOLDE R 
I N FORM AT I ON

CORPOR ATE 
D I RECTORY

CONTE NT S

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Analysis of  Employee Benefi ts

Consol idated Group
Opening balance at 1 July 569,371 579,998

Amounts taken during the year (254,744) (252,291)

Amount provided during the year 222,606 241,664

Closing Balance 30 June 537,233 569,371

Current

Employee benefi ts 506,469 423,370

Non – Current

Employee benefi ts 30,764 146,001

537,233 569,371

14.  UNEARNED INCOME
Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Current

Annual licence and maintenance in advance 1,462,870 1,471,764

Non-Current

Annual licence and maintenance in advance 46,218 -

1,509,088 1,471,764
 Annua l l icence and maintenance in advance revenue compr i ses fees fo r the r ight to use 
ou r sof t ware, m ino r f i xes ,  r ight s to updated ver s ions and l im i ted he lp l i ne suppor t.  These a re 
invo iced up to 12 months in advance.  The revenue i s  recogn i sed month ly as the se r v ices a re 
p rov ided to c l ient s .

15. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Consol idated Group
2017

Number
2017

$
2016

Number
2016

$
Issued and paid up capital 33,354,995 20,836,242 32,846,662 20,728,742
Ordinary shares

Opening balance 32,846,662 20,728,742 32,659,758 20,656,242

Add: Shares issued for the purchase of the medical 
software assets of Abaki Pty Ltd

208,333 62,500 146,904 62,500

  Add: Shares issued under Exempt Employee Share Plan - - 40,000 10,000

Add: Shares issued from exercise of options 300,000 45,000 - -

Total number of shares on issue 33,354,995 20,836,242 32,846,662 20,728,742
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a. ORDINARY SHARES
The ho lder s of o rd ina r y sha res a re ent i t led to receive d iv idends as they a re decla red f rom 
t ime to t ime and a re ent i t led to one vote per sha re at the sha reho lder s meet ing.  In the 
event of w ind ing up the Company o rd ina r y sha reho lder s rank af te r a l l  other sha reho lder s 
and cred i to r s and a re fu l l y ent i t led to any net p roceeds of l iqu idat ion.  There i s  no par va lue 
at t r ibuted to the sha res of the Company.

On 2 August 2016, 20 8 ,333 sha res were i s sued in the second ins ta l lment of the Abak i 
acqu i s i t ion.

On 9 Febr uar y 2017, 3 0 0,0 0 0 opt ions were exerc i sed at a s t r i ke p r ice of $ 0.15 per sha re 
($ 4 5,0 0 0)

b. OPTIONS
The movement in the number of un l i s ted opt ions on i s sue th roughout the year i s  as fo l lows:

Consol idated Group
2017

Number
2016

Number
(i)  $0.15 options exercisable on or before 5 July 2017
  Opening balance 300,000 300,000

  Issued - -

  Exercised (300,000) -

  Cancelled - -

 Closing balance - 300,000
(i i)  $0.65 options exercisable on or before 19 December 2017
  Opening balance 530,000 690,000

  Issued - -

  Exercised - -

  Cancelled - (160,000)

 Closing balance 530,000 530,000
(i i i )  $0.75 options exercisable on or before 26 May 2019
  Opening balance 300,000 300,000

  Issued - -

  Exercised - -

  Cancelled - -

 Closing balance 300,000 300,000
(iv) $0.65 options exercisable on or before 10 June 2020
  Opening balance 390,000 390,000

  Issued - -

  Exercised - -

  Cancelled (80,000) -

 Closing balance 310,000 390,000
(v) $0.75 options exercisable on or before 30 November 2019
  Opening balance - -

  Issued 400,000 -

  Exercised - -

  Cancelled - -

 Closing balance 400,000 -
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Consol idated Group
2017

Number
2016

Number
(vi)  $0.75 options exercisable on or before 30 November 2021
  Opening balance - -

  Issued 600,000 -

  Exercised - -

  Cancelled - -

 Closing balance 600,000 -

 TOTAL 2,140,000 1,520,000

At the Company Annua l Genera l  Meet ing he ld on 29 November 2016, sha reho lder s approved 
the i s sue of :

 - 4 0 0,0 0 0 opt ions w i th an exp i r y date of 3 0 November 2019 at a s t r i ke p r ice of $ 0.75 per sha re
 - 60 0,0 0 0 opt ions w i th an exp i r y date of 3 0 November 2021 at a s t r i ke p r ice of $ 0.75 per sha re.

On 23 June 2017, due to the res ignat ion of an employee, 8 0,0 0 0 un l i s ted employee opt ions 
wh ich had not yet ves ted, were fo r fe i ted.

c. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Management cont ro l s  the capi ta l  of the Group in o rder to mainta in a good debt to equ i t y 
rat io,  p rov ide the sha reho lder s w i th adequate retu rns and ensu re that the Group can fund 
i t s  operat ions and cont inue as a go ing concern. The Group’s debt and capi ta l  compr i ses 
o rd ina r y sha re capi ta l ,  suppor ted by f inancia l  as set s .   The re a re no ex te rna l l y imposed 
capi ta l  requ i rements .

Management ef fect ive ly manages the Group’s capi ta l  by assess ing the Group’s f inancia l  r i s k s 
and ad jus t ing i t s  capi ta l  s t r uctu re in response to changes in these r i sk s and in the mar ket. 
These responses inc lude the management of debt leve l s ,  d i s t r ibut ions to sha reho lder s and 
sha re i s sues .

There have been no changes in the s t rategy adopted by management to cont ro l  the capi ta l 
of the Group s ince the p r io r year.  The gear ing rat ios fo r the year s ended 3 0 June 2017 and 3 0 
June 2016 a re as fo l lows:

Consol idated Group
2017

Number
2016

Number
Gearing Ratios

Borrowings 1,468,760 1,741,219

Less Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,543,412) (1,149,028)

Net Debt (1,074,652) 592,191

Total equity 4,861,711 3,645,258
Total capital 3,787,059 4,237,449
Gearing Ratio (28%) 14%
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16. RESERVES

a. CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE
The fo re ign cu r rency t rans lat ion rese r ve records the fo re ign cu r rency d i f fe rences a r i s ing f rom 
the t rans lat ion of fo re ign operat ions .

Reconcil iat ion of currency translat ion reserve
Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Balance at beginning of fi nancial year 30,485 49,278

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (6,251) (18,793)

Balance at the end of the f inancial year 24,234 30,485

b. OPTION RESERVE
The opt ion rese r ve records i tems recogn i sed as expenses on va luat ion of employee sha re 
opt ions .

Reconcil iat ion of option reserve
Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Balance at beginning of fi nancial year 29,978 29,978

Share based payment expense 50,867 -

Balance at the end of the f inancial year 80,845 29,978

17. ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016 

Restated
$

Accumulated losses at the beginning of the fi nancial year (17,144,355) (17,250,416)

Net profi t attributable to the members of the parent entity 1,728,369 106,061

Dividends paid (663,700) -

Accumulated losses at the end of the f inancial year (16,079,686) (17,144,355)

18. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Global Hea l th L im i ted has a 93 .8% (2016: 93 .8%) inte res t in the subs id ia r y Wor k ing Sys tems 
So lut ions (Malays ia) Sdn Bhd. Reta ined earn ings at t r ibutab le to the non - cont ro l l i ng inte res t 
a re as fo l lows:
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Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016 

Restated
$

Balance at the beginning of the f inancial year 408 (1,512)
Non-controlling interests attributable to this entity is as follows:

- share of profi t/(loss)

- share of currency translation reserve

(324)
(8)

1,884

36

Balance at the end of the f inancial year 76 408

19. PARTICULARS IN RELATION TO CONTROLLED ENTIT IES
Global Hea l th L im i ted, incorporated in Aus t ra l ia,  i s  the u l t imate parent ent i t y.  I t s  lega l fo r m 
i s  a pub l ic company and the Company i s  domic i led in V icto r ia.  Un les s s tated other w i se, 
a l l  subs id ia r ies p r inc ipa l act iv i t y i s  the sa le and suppor t of app l icat ion sof t ware fo r the 
hea l thcare secto r.

Control led Ent i ty Place of 
Incorporation

Type of 
Securi ty

Interest 
2017

Interest 
2016

Global Health (Australia) Sdn Bhd Kuala Lumpur
Ordinary 
Shares

100% 100%

Working Systems Solutions (Malaysia) 
Sdn Bhd

Kuala Lumpur
Ordinary 
Shares

94% 94%

Working Systems Solutions Pty Ltd Victoria
Ordinary 
shares

100% 100%

Uni U International Pty Ltd Western Australia
Ordinary 
shares

100% 100%

Working Systems Solutions (Singapore) 
Pte Ltd

Singapore
Ordinary 
shares

100% 100%

Bourke Johnston Systems Pty Ltd Victoria
Ordinary 
shares

100% 100%

Working Systems Software Pty Ltd Western Australia
Ordinary 
shares

100% 100%

Statewide Unit Trust Western Australia Units 100% 100%
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s f inancia l  ins t r uments cons i s t  p r imar i l y of t rade receivab les ,  t rade payables and 
bor row ings .   The Group does not have s ign i f icant r i sk exposu re to f inancia l  ins t r uments and 
as such r i sk exposu res a re genera l l y managed as par t of the Group’s overa l l  s t rateg ic and 
operat iona l r i sk management s t rateg ies .   Consequent ly,  the re i s  cu r rent ly no speci f ic r i sk 
m i t igat ing techn iques employed.  However,  as the Group expands both domest ica l l y and 
inte rnat iona l l y,  management cont inues to mon i to r i t s  exposu re and w i l l  imp lement su i tab le 
po l ic ies when deemed necessa r y.  

The f inancia l  ins t r uments he ld by the Group a re as fo l lows:

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 2,543,412 1,149,028

Trade and other receivables 6 1,962,009 1,813,379

4,505,421 2,962,407
Financial L iabi l i t ies
Financial liabilities  at amortised cost:

Trade and other payables 10 (1,079,282) (1,395,768)

Borrowings 11 (1,468,761) (1,741,729)

(2,548,042) (3,137,497)

The Group i s  exposed to fo re ign cu r rency f luctuat ions due to loan accounts bet ween re lated 
ent i t ies be ing unhedged and requ i r ing payment in Aus t ra l ian do l la r at an undete r mined date 
in the futu re.

a. CREDIT RISK 
Cred i t  r i sk refe r s to the r i sk that the counte rpar t y w i l l  defau l t  on i t s  cont ractua l ob l igat ions 
resu l t ing in f inancia l  los s to the Group and essent ia l l y a r i ses f rom ho ld ings of cash and 
depos i t s ,  t rade receivab les and loans receivab le as wel l  as f rom the parent’s potent ia l 
ob l igat ions under the indemnit y guarantee p rov ided to bank s .  The r i sk i s  la rge ly managed 
th rough a po l icy of on ly dea l ing w i th c red i t wor thy counte rpar t ies .   Pe r iod ic assessments 
of debto r ba lances a re under taken and p rov i s ions fo r impai r ment a re recogn i sed where 
appropr iate.

Max imum exposu re to cred i t  r i s k w i thout tak ing account of any co l late ra l  he ld o r other 
c red i t  enhancements a r i s ing f rom the Group’s recogn i sed f inancia l  as set s i s  cons idered to 
be equ iva lent to the i r  ca r r y ing va lues at repor t ing date.  Max imum exposu res a r i s ing f rom 
the indemnit y guarantee a re as d i sc losed at Note 24: Commitments and Cont ingencies .   The 
Group does not have any s ign i f icant c red i t  r i s k exposu re to any s ing le counte rpar t y o r g roups 
of counte rpar t ies hav ing s im i la r characte r i s t ics .

The majo r i t y of cus tomer s have long s tand ing bus iness re lat ionsh ips w i th the Group and the i r 
c red i t  qua l i t y w i th respect to t rade receivab les i s  as ses sed as h igh.

A l l  cash and cash equ iva lents a re he ld w i th la rge reputab le f inancia l  ins t i tut ions w i th in 
Aus t ra l ia,  Malays ia and S ingapore and therefo re cred i t  r i s k i s  cons idered ver y low.



67

RE VI E W OF 
OPER AT ION S

D I RECTORS’ 
RE PORT

CORPOR ATE 
GOVE RNANCE 

STATEME NT

D I RECTORS’ 
DECL AR AT ION

AN NUAL 
F I NANCIAL 

RE PORT

SHARE HOLDE R 
I N FORM AT I ON

CORPOR ATE 
D I RECTORY

CONTE NT S

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
 Cash at Bank and deposits

Australian banks 2,529,019 1,145,451

Malaysian banks 13,791 3,577

2,542,810 1,149,028

b. LIQUIDITY RISK
L iqu id i t y r i sk i s  managed th rough mon i to r ing cu r rent funds ava i lab le, undrawn faci l i t ies 
and ant ic ipated recover y of rece ivab les and compar ing w i th futu re fund ing requ i rements 
conta ined in management budgets and fo recast s .   I n th i s  regard, the t im ing of expected 
set t lement of l iab i l i t ies i s  a l so ana lysed so as to m in im i se r i sk w i th respect to ob l igat ions 
becoming past due.  Th i s  i s  cons i s tent w i th the p r io r year.

The matu r i t y p rof i le of the Group’s f inancia l  l iab i l i t ies i s  p resented in the fo l low ing tab le 
based on cont ractua l matu r i t y dates and represent und i scounted cash f lows.

Group 30 June 2017
Within 1 

year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years
Total 

contracted 
cash f lows

$ $ $ $
Financial liabilities due for payment

Trade and Other Payables (1,079,282) - - (1,079,282)

Borrowings (389,880) (1,078,880) - (1,468,760)

Total expected outf lows (1,469,162) (1,078,880) - (2,548,042)
Financial assets – cash fl ows 
realisable

Cash and cash equivalents 2,543,412 - - 2,543,412

Trade and other receivables 1,821,098 140,911 - 1,962,009

Total ant icipated inf low on 
f inancial instruments 4,364,510 140,911 - 4,505,421

Net infl ow on fi nancial instruments 2,895,348 (937,969) - 1,957,379

Group 30 June 2016
Within 1 

year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years
Total 

contracted 
cash f lows

$ $ $ $
Financial liabilities due for payment

Trade and Other Payables (1,145,768) (250,000) - (1,395,768)

Borrowings (355,351) (1,386,378) - (1,741,729)

Total expected outf lows (1,501,119) (1,636,378) - (3,137,497)
Financial assets – cash fl ows 
realisable

Cash and cash equivalents 1,149,028 - - 1,149,028

Trade and other receivables 1,536,734 276,645 - 1,813,379

Total ant icipated inf low on 
f inancial instruments 2,685,762 276,645 - 2,962,407

Net infl ow/(outfl ow) on fi nancial 
instruments

1,184,643 (1,359,733) - (175,090)
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c. MARKET RISK
The Group i s  exposed to inte res t rate and fo re ign cu r rency r i sk .  

( i )  In te res t ra te r i sk
The Group has exposu re to va r iab le inte res t rates on mon ies that a re kept in at- ca l l  bank 
accounts .  

Fo r sens i t iv i t ies re lat ing to inte res t rate r i sk ,  refe r to parag raph ( i i i )  be low.

( i i )  Fo re ign exchange r i sk
The Group cont ro l s  subs id ia r ies in Malays ia and S ingapore and par t ic ipates in a jo int ventu re 
in Malays ia. The Group i s  the refo re exposed to fo re ign exchange r i sk a r i s ing f rom exposu re 
to cu r rencies of these respect ive count r ies .   Such r i sk a r i ses f rom futu re t ransact ions and 
asset s and l iab i l i t ies that a re denominated in funct iona l cu r rencies other that the Aus t ra l ian 
do l la r.   Management does not engage in an act ive p rog ram of hedg ing exposu re to fo re ign 
cu r rencies .

The exposu re to fo re ign cu r rency r i sk at repor t ing date i s  represented by the fo l low ing 
ba lances:

Consol idated Group
2017 2016

MYR SGD MYR SGD
Assets denominated in foreign currency 48,181 - 100,911 12,889

Liabilities denominated in foreign currency - - (24,287) (7,484)

Net exposure to foreign currency - - 76,624 5,405
Fo r sens i t iv i t ies re lat ing to fo re ign cu r rency r i sk ,  refe r to parag raph ( i i i )  be low.

( i i i )    Sens i t iv i t y Ana lys i s

In te res t Rate R i sk and Fo re ign Cur rency R i sk
The fo l low ing sens i t iv i t y ana lys i s  demonst rates the ef fect on the cu r rent year resu l t s  and 
equ i t y wh ich cou ld resu l t  f rom a reasonably poss ib le change in inte res t rate and fo re ign 
cu r rency r i sk s .   The ana lys i s  i s  i nd icat ive on ly and assumes that the movement in the 
par t icu la r va r iab le i s  independent of the other va r iab les and that a l l  other va r iab les 
remained constant.

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Change in prof i t  after tax
+/- in interest rate by 0.5% +/-11,000 +/-200

+/- in $A/MYR rate by 15% +/-2,500 +/-0

Change in Equity
+/- in interest rate by 0.5% +/-11,000 +/-200

+/- in $A/MYR rate by 15% +/-2,500 +/-28,000
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( iv)  Capi ta l  R i sk Management
Management cont ro l s  the capi ta l  of the Group in o rder to mainta in a good debt to equ i t y 
rat io,  p rov ide the sha reho lder s w i th adequate retu rns and ensu re that the Group can fund 
i t s  operat ions and cont inue as a go ing concern. The Group’s debt and capi ta l  compr i ses 
o rd ina r y sha re capi ta l  suppor ted by f inancia l  as set s .

The Group does not cu r rent ly have s ign i f icant debt capi ta l  employed in the bus iness .  There 
a re no ex te rna l l y imposed capi ta l  requ i rements .

Fa i r  va lue es t imat ion
The fa i r  va lues of f inancia l  as set s and f inancia l  l iab i l i t ies a re as p resented in the conso l idated 
s tatement of f inancia l  pos i t ion. Fa i r  va lues a re those amounts at wh ich an asset cou ld be 
exchanged, o r a l iab i l i t y set t led, bet ween knowledgeable, w i l l i ng par t ies in an a r m’s length 
t ransact ion.

Fa i r  va lues der ived may be based on info r mat ion that i s  es t imated o r sub ject to judgment, 
where changes in as sumpt ions may have a mater ia l  impact on the amounts es t imated. 

The net fa i r  va lue of cash and cash equ iva lents and non inte res t bear ing moneta r y f inancia l 
as set s and f inancia l  l iab i l i t ies of the Group approx imates the i r  ca r r y ing amounts .

The car r y ing va lue les s impai r ment p rov i s ion of t rade receivab les and payables a re assumed 
to approx imate the i r  fa i r  va lues due to the i r  sho r t te r m natu re.

2017 2016

Net Carrying 
Value

$

Net Fair  value
$

Net Carrying 
Value

$

Net Fair  value
$

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2,543,412 2,543,412 1,149,028 1,149,028

Trade and other receivables 1,962,009 1,962,009 1,813,379 1,813,379

Total f inancial assets 4,505,421 4,505,421 2,962,407 2,962,407

Financial l iabi l i t ies

Trade and other payables (1,079,282) (1,079,282) (1,395,768) (1,395,768)

Borrowings (1,468,761) (1,468,761) (1,741,729) (1,741,729)

Total f inancial l iabi l i t ies (2,548,043) (2,548,043) (3,137,497) (3,137,497)
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21. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

a. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION PLAN
The Employee Share Opt ion P lan was adopted when the Company was l i s ted. The p lan 
a l lows the Company to g rant opt ions over sha res to key execut ives and d i recto r s and other 
employees as se lected by the D i recto r s to enable them to par t ic ipate in the futu re g row th 
and p rof i tab i l i t y of the Company, to p rov ide an incent ive and reward fo r the i r  cont r ibut ions 
and to at t ract and mainta in per sonnel .  The opt ions a re i s sued at no cons iderat ion. The 
exerc i se p r ice of opt ions i s  based on the weighted average mar ket p r ice of the Company’s 
Shares du r ing the f ive t rad ing days up to and inc lud ing the date of g rant of the opt ion o r 
such other date o r per iod as the D i recto r s cons ider appropr iate.  Opt ions ves t one -th i rd each 
year over th ree year s f rom the g rant date and have an exp i r y date of f i ve year s f rom the 
g rant date. 

The parent ent i t y has adopted t wo incent ive p lans to enable employees and d i recto r s to 
par t ic ipate in owner sh ip of G loba l Hea l th L im i ted.  The d i recto r s have dete r mined that the 
tota l  number of secur i t ies wh ich may be i s sued pu r suant to the E xempt Employee Share P lan 
and Employee Share Opt ion P lan in any f ive -year per iod must not exceed 5% of the tota l 
number of secur i t ies on of fe r f rom t ime to t ime.  Th i s  l im i tat ion on ly appl ies to new of fe r s of 
secur i t ies by the parent ent i t y and not to ex i s t ing secur i t ies pu rchased on mar ket under the 
E xempt Employee Share P lan.

The opt ions i s sued under the ESOP a re not quoted on the Aus t ra l ian Stock E xchange.

Employee Share Opt ions a re i s sued under the te r ms and cond i t ions of the P lan as d i sc losed 
on the Company’s webs i te.   Shou ld an employee cease employment befo re the complet ion 
of t wo year s af te r the i s sue of any employee opt ion, the opt ion i s sued automat ica l l y lapses , 
except where cessat ion i s  due to death o r tota l  per manent d i sab i l i t y,  ret i rement,  redundancy 
o r any other reason, based on wh ich the d i recto r s be l ieve i s  fa i r  and reasonable to war rant 
the employee mainta in ing the i r  r ight to exerc i se the opt ion in wh ich case they w i l l  have s i x (6) 
months to exerc i se the opt ions .

Consol idated Group
2017

Number
2016

Number
Opening balance 1,520,000 1,680,000
Issued 1,000,000 -

Exercised (300,000) -

Forfeited (80,000) (160,000)

Closing balance 2,140,000 1,520,000

Dur ing the f inancia l  year and up to the date of these accounts ,  1,0 0 0,0 0 0 opt ions were i s sued 
(2016: n i l).

The fa i r  va lue of the 1,0 0 0,0 0 0 opt ions i s sued du r ing the year was dete r mined us ing the B lack 
Scho les va luat ion model on g rant date based on the fo l low ing inputs .
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Grant date Vest ing 
date

Share 
price at 

valuation 
date

Exercise 
Pr ice

Expected 
volat i l i ty

Risk f ree 
interest 

rate

Fair  value at 
grant date

(per option)

19 December 
2016

30 November 
2021

$0.49 $0.75 40% 3.00% $0.1269

19 December 
2016

30 November 
2019

$0.49 $0.75 40% 3.00% $0.0789

H i s to r ica l  vo lat i l i t y has been the bas i s  fo r dete r min ing expected sha re p r ice vo lat i l i t y as i t  i s 
as sumed that th i s  i s  i nd icat ive of futu re movements .

The mar ket p r ice of the o rd ina r y sha res of G loba l Hea l th L im i ted was $ 0.32 on 3 0 June 2017 
(2016: $ 0.42).

Set out be low a re summar ies of opt ions g ranted under the p lan:

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT ENTITY - 2017

Grant 
Date

Expiry 
Date

Exercise 
Pr ice

Balance 
at start 
of  the 
year

Number

Granted 
during 

the year
Number

Exercised 
during the 

year
Number

Expired/ 
forfei ted 

during 
the year
Number

Balance 
at the 
end of 

the year
Number

Exercisable 
at the end 
of the year

Number

5 July 2013 5 Jul 2017 $0.15 300,000 - (300,000) - - -

19 Dec 2013 19 Dec 2017 $0.65 530,000 - - - 530,000 530,000

26 May 2014 26 May 2019 $0.75 300,000 - - - 300,000 300,000

10 Jun 2016 10 Jun 2020 $0.65 390,000 - - (80,000) 310,000 260,000

19 Dec 2016 30 Nov 2019 $0.75 - 400,000 - - 400,000 133,333

19 Dec 2016 30 Nov 2021 $0.75 - 600,000 - - 600,000 120,000

TOTALS 1,520,000 1,000,000 (300,000) (80,000) 2,140,000 1,343,333
Weighted average exercise 
pr ice $0.57 $0.75 $0.15 $0.65 $0.71 $0.67

Weighted average share price $0.3916

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT ENTITY - 2016

Grant 
Date

Expiry 
Date

Exercise 
Pr ice

Balance 
at start 
of  the 
year

Number

Granted 
during 

the year
Number

Exercised 
during the 

year
Number

Expired/ 
forfei ted 

during 
the year
Number

Balance 
at the 
end of 

the year
Number

Exercisable 
at the end 
of the year

Number

5 Jul 2013 5 Jul 2017 $0.15 300,000 - - - 300,000 200,000

19 Dec 2013 19 Dec 2017 $0.65 690,000 - - (160,000) 530,000 380,000

26 May 2014 26 May 2019 $0.75 300,000 - - - 300,000 200,000

10 Jun 2016 10 Jun 2020 $0.65 390,000 - - - 390,000 130,000

TOTALS 1,680,000 - - (160,000) 1,520,000 910,000
Weighted average exercise 
pr ice $0.58 - - $0.65 $0.57 $0.56

Weighted average share price $0.2971
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b. EXEMPT EMPLOYEE SHARE PLAN (‘EESP’)
A p lan under wh ich sha res may be i s sued by the Company to employees fo r no cash 
cons iderat ion was adopted when the Company was l i s ted. A l l  d i recto r s ,  of f ice r s o r employees 
who a re f rom t ime to t ime engaged in fu l l  o r  pa r t t ime wor k fo r the Company a re e l ig ib le to 
par t ic ipate in the E xempt Employee Share P lan. 

Under the p lan, e l ig ib le employees may be g ranted up to $1,0 0 0 wor th of fu l l y pa id o rd ina r y 
sha res in the Company fo r no cash cons iderat ion. The mar ket va lue of the sha res w i l l  be 
measu red as the mar ket p r ice quoted fo r buyer s of the Company sha res at the c lose of 
t rad ing on the day immediate ly p reced ing the date of the of fe r by the D i recto r s as pub l i shed 
by the ASX. 

Of fe r s under the p lan a re at the d i sc ret ion of the Company and the sha res cannot be 
t rans fe r red o r as s igned by the ho lder w i th in the per iod of th ree year s f rom the date of i s sue 
o r t rans fe r to the ho lder un les s the ho lder ceases employment w i th the Company ear l ie r  than 
that date except that the ho lder may at any t ime t rans fe r a l l  o r  any of h i s  Sha res to h i s  spouse 
o r to a company the majo r i t y of the i s sued sha res in wh ich a re benef ic ia l l y owned by h im o r 
to any t r us t  that the ho lder i s  a benef ic ia r y of.

Du r ing the year,  no sha res were i s sued under the p lan (2016: 4 0,0 0 0 sha res at $10,0 0 0) 

22. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

a. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The fo l low ing per sons were D i recto r s and Key Management Per sonnel of the Company du r ing 
the f inancia l  year :

M r S Pynt  Cha i r man – Independent Non - E xecut ive
M r M Cher ian  Ch ief E xecut ive Of f ice r and Manag ing D i recto r
M r G Smith  D i recto r – Independent Non - E xecut ive
M r R Knowles  D i recto r – Independent Non - E xecut ive
Ms P Beerens  D i recto r – Independent Non - E xecut ive (appointed 1 December 2016)
M r P Cur ig l iano Company Secreta r y and Ch ief F inancia l  Of f ice r (ceased 28 Decembe r 2 016)

M r K Jayesu r ia  Techno logy De l ive r y Manager

b. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION
Refe r to the Remunerat ion Repor t in the D i recto r s’  Repor t fo r deta i l s  of the remunerat ion pa id 
o r payable to each member of the Group’s Key Management Per sonnel fo r the year ended 3 0 
June 2017.The tota l  remunerat ion pa id to Key Management Per sonnel of the Company and the 
Group du r ing the year a re as fo l lows:

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Short-term employee benefi ts 653,661 689,538

Other long-term benefi ts 6,624 6,957

Post-employment benefi ts 101,350 64,163

761,635 760,658
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SHARES
The inte res t of key management per sonnel and the i r  re lated ent i t ies in sha res of the Company 
as at 3 0 June 2017 a re:

Total number of shares Number of shares sold Number of shares 
acquired

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Mr K Jayesuria 4,000 4,000 - - - -

4,000 4,000 - - - -

OPTIONS
The inte res t of Key Management Per sonnel and the i r  re lated ent i t ies in opt ions of the 
Company as at 3 0 June 2017 a re:

Total number of options
Number of option 

granted during the 
year

Number of options 
exercised during the 

year
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Mr K Jayesuria 600,000 300,000 300,000 - - -

600,000 300,000 300,000 - - -

23. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS 

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Amounts received, or due and receivable by the 
auditors of the enti ty for:
   -   MSI Ragg Weir  (Austral ia)
       Auditing or reviewing the fi nancial report - 51,462

        Taxation services - 7,950

Shine Wing (Austral ia)
       Auditing or reviewing the fi nancial report 65,000 -

-  TY Teoh International (Malaysia) [Part  of  the MSI 
Group Al l iance]
       Auditing or reviewing the fi nancial report of controlled entities  3,150 3,174

 Taxation services for controlled entities 1,500 1,474

- J Wong and Associates (Singapore)
         Auditing or reviewing the fi nancial report 1,500 1,482

71,150 65,542
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24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

a. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
Future operating lease rentals not provided for in the f inancial statements and 
payable:
Not later than 1 year 162,725 162,725

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 547,156 709,881

Later than 5 years - -

809,881 872,606

The parent ent i t y’s operat ing lease fo r the re located Melbourne of f ice commenced on 14 Ju ly 
2014 w i th reduced f loo r space in the same bu i ld ing.  The Company s igned on fo r a lease te r m 
of 7 year s .

b. GUARANTEES

Consol idated Group
2017

$
2016

$
The parent has provided a cash security bond in favour of the property 
owner of the parent entity’s leased premises in Melbourne, Australia. 102,187 102,187

In the op in ion of the D i recto r s ,  the Group d id not have any cont ingencies as at 3 0 June 2017.
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25. EARNINGS PER SHARE

          Consol idated Group

2017
$

2016
Restated

$
The fol lowing ref lects the income and share data used in the calculat ions of basic 
and di luted earnings per share:
Net profi t/ (loss) attributable to owners of the parent 1,932,343 (106,061)

Net profi t / (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests (324) 1,884

Earnings used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share 1,932,019 (107,945)

Number of 
Shares

Number of 
Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating 
basic earnings per share:

33,152,050 32,794,621

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating 
diluted earnings per share:

35,292,050 32,910,114

2017
cents

2016
cents

Basic earnings after tax per share (cents per share) 5.212 (0.329)

Diluted earnings per share (after tax) 4.896 (0.327)

Basic Earnings Per Share (before tax) 5.827 (0.329)

Diluted Earnings Per Share (before tax) 5.474 (0.327)

26. SEGMENT INFORMATION

OPERATING SEGMENTS 
The Group operates in the computer techno logy, sof t ware and se r v ices indus t r y w i th 
par t icu la r emphas i s  on hea l thcare and associated p rofess iona l se r v ices .

The Group has ident i f ied i t s  operat ing segments based on the inte rna l repor t s that a re 
rev iewed and used by the execut ive management team (‘ the ch ief operat ing deci s ion 
maker’)  in as sess ing per fo r mance and in dete r min ing the a l locat ion of resou rces .

The operat ing segments a re ident i f ied by management based on the natu re of the se r v ice 
p rov ided. D i sc rete f inancia l  in fo r mat ion about each of these operat ing se r v ice l ines i s 
repor ted to the execut ive management team on at leas t a month ly bas i s .

The repor tab le segments a re based on agg regated operat ing segments dete r mined by the 
s im i la r i t y of the se r v ices p rov ided, the s im i la r i t y of the cus tomer bases ,  the common repor t ing 
and management sys tems used and the common regu la r i t y env i ronment appl icab le to each 
repor tab le segment.  There i s  a c lea r des ignat ion of respons ib i l i t y and accountab i l i t y by the 
ch ief operat ing deci s ion maker s fo r the management and per fo r mance of these repor tab le 
segments . 
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The Group compr i ses the fo l low ing main operat ing segments:

• Acute Info r mat ion sys tem appl icat ions fo r the hosp i ta l  and day su rger y mar ket to 
de l ive r bet te r and more integ rated hea l th ca re.

• Non -Acute Comprehens ive su i te of app l icat ions that p rov ide the management of 
popu lat ion outcomes fo r communit ies of common inte res t.

• Other Products and se r v ices de l ive red to non - hea l thcare cus tomer s and inc lude 
revenues and expenses as sociated w i th th i rd par t y p roducts and cost 
recover ies f rom customer s .

• Corporate E xpend i tu re associated w i th Corporate, Sa les and Mar ket ing act iv i t ies .

SEGMENT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Group genera l l y accounts fo r inte r- segment sa les and t rans fe r s as i f  the sa les o r t rans fe r s 
were to th i rd par t ies at cu r rent mar ket p r ices .   Revenues a re at t r ibuted to geog raph ic a reas 
based on the locat ion of the asset s p roducing the revenues.
Du r ing the f inancia l  year the re were no changes in segment account ing po l ic ies that had a 
mater ia l  ef fect on the segment info r mat ion.

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Although the Group’s d iv i s ions a re managed on a g loba l bas i s  they operate in t wo main 
geog raph ica l a reas:

Aust ra l ia
Th i s  i s  the home count r y of the main operat ing ent i t y.   The co rporate head of f ice i s  based in 
Melbourne, V icto r ia w i th a smal l  number of employees a l so located in other s tates in Aus t ra l ia 
fo r the p rov i s ion of p rofess iona l se r v ices and p roduct deve lopment. 

Malays ia
I n p r io r year s ,  the Group operated in the ASE AN reg ion w i th loca l resou rces employed to 
p rov ide suppor t to Southeast As ian c l ient s of the Group.  Cu r rent ly,  the Company’s c l in ica l 
sof t ware, Maste rCare EMR, i s  used by the Malays ian M in i s t r y of Hea l th’s MENTARI communit y 
menta l hea l th p rog ram. The Company, th rough i t s  Ma lays ian d i s t r ibuto r,  i s  look ing to fu r the r 
i t s  engagement in the mar ket. 

In p resent ing info r mat ion on the bas i s  of geog raph ica l segments ,  segment revenue i s  based 
on the geog raph ica l locat ion of cus tomer s .   Segment asset s a re based on the geog raph ica l 
locat ion of the asset s .
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27. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVIT IES

Consol idated Group
2017

 $
2016 

$
Operating prof i t/( loss) before income tax 1,932,019 107,945
Add /(deduct) non-cash items:

 Amortisation of Intangibles 266,021 262,043

 Depreciation of fi xed assets 87,931 122,048

 Impairment of intangible assets 917,381 -

     Bad debt written off - 29,455

     Employee share option expense 50,687 10,000

 Net loss/(gain) on disposal of plant and equipment - (100)

Net cash inf low/(outf low) f rom operating activi t ies 
before change in assets and l iabi l i t ies 3,254,039 531,391
Change in assets and liabilities during the period:

 (Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (111,306) (531,533)

 (Increase)/decrease in other assets 700,749 (263,263)

 Increase/(decrease) in provisions (32,138) (10,627)

 Increase/(decrease) trade and other payables (260,065) 805,730

Net cash inf low from operating activi t ies 3,551,279 531,698

28. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE
There have been no s ign i f icant events subsequent to repor t ing date.

29. DIVIDENDS
No prov i s ion i s  made fo r d iv idends on o r befo re the end of the year. 

Du r ing the year the Company decla red and pa id t wo specia l  d iv idends of 1 cent each (2016: 
n i l ).  Deta i l s  of d iv idends decla red and o r pa id:

Dividend Detai ls Special 
Dividend

Special 
Dividend

TOTAL

Date dividend declared 14 Sep 2016 24 Feb 2017

Date dividend paid 25 Nov 2016 9 Mar 2017

Franked amount per share - - -

Unfranked amount per share $0.01 $0.01 $0.02

Total per share $0.01 $0.01 $0.02
Total value of dividend paid $330,150 $333,550 $663,700
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30. GLOBAL HEALTH LIMITED PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION

Global Health L imited
2017

$
2016

$
Assets
Current Assets 4,935,761 3,429,789

Non-Current Assets 5,572,401 4,967,899

Total Assets 10,508,162 8,397,688

Liabi l i t ies
Current Liabilities 3,484,719 3,302,116

Non-Current Liabilities 2,392,059 1,532,379

Total Liabilities 5,876,778 4,834,495

Net Assets/(Liabi l i t ies) 4,631,384 3,563,193

Equity
  Contributed equity 20,836,242 20,728,742

  Reserves 80,846 60,463

  Accumulated Losses (16,285,704) (17,226,012)

Total Equity 4,631,384 3,563,193

Financial Performance
  Profi t /(Loss) for the year 1,766,025 87,268

  Other comprehensive income - -

Total Comprehensive income/ ( loss) 1,766,025 87,268

Other than that stated in Note 24 to the f inancial statements,  the Company is not 
subject to any contingent l iabi l i t ies or contractual commitments 
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6.   DIRECTORS DECLARATION
I n the op in ion of the D i recto r s of G loba l Hea l th L im i ted (‘ the Company’):

1.  the f inancia l  s tatements and notes ,  set out on pages 26 to 60 a re in accordance w i th 
the Corporat ions Act 20 01 inc lud ing:
i .  g iv ing a t r ue and fa i r  v iew of f inancia l  pos i t ion of the conso l idated ent i t y as at 

3 0 June 2017 and of i t s  per fo r mance, fo r the year ended on that date;
i i .  comply ing w i th Account ing Standards in Aus t ra l ia and the Corporat ions 

Regu lat ions 20 01;
i i i .  comply ing w i th Inte rnat iona l Repor t ing Standards as d i sc losed in Note 1;  and
iv.  the re a re reasonable g rounds to be l ieve that the Company w i l l  be ab le to pay 

i t s  debts as and when they become due and payable.

2.  The D i recto r s have been g iven the decla rat ions requ i red by sect ion 295A of the 
Corporat ions Act 20 01 f rom the Ch ief E xecut ive Of f ice r and Ch ief F inancia l  Of f ice r 
fo r the year ended 3 0 June 2017.

Th i s  decla rat ion i s  made in accordance w i th a reso lut ion of the D i recto r s .

On beha l f  of the Board

Steven Le igh Pynt
Non-Execut ive Chai rman
Melbourne, 28 September 2 017
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ShineWing Australia ABN 39 533 589 331. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. ShineWing Australia is an independent member of ShineWing 
International Limited – members in principal cities throughout the world.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GLOBAL HEALTH LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Global Health Limited (“the Company”) and its controlled entities (“the 
Group”), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

a) giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of its financial performance 
for the year then ended; and 

b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

The Group had not applied tax effective accounting in recognising current and deferred tax in prior periods, which 
constitutes a departure from Australian Accounting Standards. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence on opening tax balances in respect of the comparative period ended 30 June 2016. Accordingly, we 
were unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary on current and deferred tax in prior periods.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the 
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s 
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified opinion. 
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Key Audit Matters  
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial report of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
 
In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 
 

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed during the audit 

Valuation of Intangible Assets (Note 9) 

Australian Accounting Standards require the Group to 
undertake an impairment analysis of assets where 
impairment indicators are identified from internal and 
external sources of information. As at 30 June 2017, 
internal indicators were identified from management’s 
forecast with respect to certain underperforming intangible 
assets. 

We have determined this is a key audit matter due to the 
judgement required by management in preparing value in 
use models to satisfy the impairment test as prescribed in 
AASB 136 Impairment of Assets, including the forecasting 
of future cash flows and applying an appropriate discount 
rate which inherently involved a high degree of estimation 
and judgement by management.  

 

Our procedures included, amongst others: 

 Assessing the model for compliance with AASB 136 
Impairment of Assets; 
 

 Assessing management’s determination of the cash 
generating units based on our understanding of the nature 
of intangible assets; 
 

 Analysing the future cash flows forecasts and 
understanding the process by which they were developed, 
including testing the underlying calculations of the models 
and reasonableness of key assumptions; 

 
 We performed sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions 

and variables to determine various outcomes of the value in 
use model and whether there were any significant 
impairment indicators; and 

 Assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures within 
the financial statements.  

Capitalisation of Development Costs (Note 9) 

During the year, Global Health Ltd continued to capitalise 
development costs relating to internal software 
development projects. For internally generated intangible 
assets, the Australian Accounting Standards require 
certain conditions to be satisfied prior to development 
costs being capitalised.  

We have determined this is a key audit matter due to the 
judgement required by management to differentiate costs 
between the research phase and development phase. As 
at 30 June 2017, the Group had disclosed a carrying value 
of $4,817,920 relating to internal software development 
projects. 

Our procedures included, amongst others: 

 We checked the capitalisation process and status of current 
projects to obtain an understanding of the relevant 
procedures and control activities performed to appropriately 
capitalise development costs; 

 We enquired with management on significant transactions 
capitalised during the reporting period to determine the 
nature of the additions and whether this had been 
recognised in accordance with the relevant accounting 
standards; 

 We discussed with management business plans and 
examined post commercialisation revenue projections; and 

 We tested a sample of capitalised development costs for 
the year to source documentation and assessed whether 
the intangible asset recognition criteria had been satisfied 
for capitalisation. 
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed during the audit 

Revenue Recognition (Note 2) 

The Group’ derives revenue from the provision of licences, 
maintenance fees and rendering of professional services. 
Some of these streams are dependent on project 
milestones being completed and also the subscription 
period of contracts.  

Revenue recognition from these streams can be complex 
and require judgement. Accordingly, the terms of the 
contracts and consequential revenue recognition has been 
identified as a key audit matter. 

In addition, Global Health Ltd had also settled a litigation 
case during the financial year concerning SA Health 
whereby Global Health had received $5m in 
compensation. Determining the appropriate revenue 
recognition of the compensation received and disclosures 
of the event were a key focus area to the audit. 

 

   

Our procedures included, amongst others: 

 We documented and tested processes and key internal 
controls in the revenue cycle (where applicable); 

 We considered the appropriateness of the accounting policy 
used to recognise revenue; 

 We checked sales transactions both sides of the balance 
sheet date for recognition in the appropriate year; 

 We selected a random sample of revenue transactions 
recorded during the year and traced to source 
documentation for reasonableness including an 
examination on the terms of the contract for appropriate 
revenue recognition;  

 We performed sales analytics against forecasts/prior year 
results (where applicable) to identify any sales anomalies; 

 We examined the legal settlement documents relating to the 
SA Health litigation and other relevant documentation to 
assess the appropriate revenue recognition of the 
compensation received; and 

 We checked the disclosures of the event and determined 
whether this was appropriately reflected in the financial 
statements. 

 

 
Other Matter 

The financial report of Global Health Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2016 was audited by another auditor who 
expressed an unmodified opinion on that report on 29 September 2016. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2017, but does not include the financial report and our 
auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact.  
 
  



 
 
 
 
 

4 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report  
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal 
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. 
 
We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
 
We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Group’s internal control.  
 
We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the directors.  
 
We conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.  
 
We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.  
 
We obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.  
 
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
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We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them, all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 
 
Report on the Remuneration Report  
 
Opinion on the Remuneration Report 
 
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 15 to 17 of the directors’ report for the year ended 30 
June 2017.   
 
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Global Health Limited the year ended 30 June 2017 complies with 
section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
Responsibilities 
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in 
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. 
 

 

 

ShineWing Australia  
Chartered Accountants 
 
 

 

 
 

Nick Michael 
Partner 
 
Melbourne, 28 September 2017 
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8.   SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
Th i s  sha reho lder info r mat ion i s  made up to 3 August 2017.

8.1.   SHAREHOLDING
1. D i s t r ibut ion of Sha reho lder Number s

Category (s ize of holding) Number of Holders No. of Shares

1 – 1,000 446 189,582

1,001 – 5,000 317 768,315

5,001 – 10,000 92 720,503

10,001 – 100,000 120 3,961,350

100,001 and over 31 27,715,245

TOTAL 1,006 33,354,995
2. The number of secur i t y inves to r s ho ld ing les s than a mar ketab le parce l of 1,4 3 0 

secur i t ies ($ 0.35 per sha re on 3 August 2017) i s  535 and they ho ld 3 01,4 0 0 secur i t ies . 
An unmar ketab le parce l of sha res i s  genera l l y a parce l of sha res w i th a tota l  va lue of 
les s than $5 0 0.

3 .  The names of the t went y la rges t ho lder s of o rd ina r y sha res a re:

Shareholder No. of shares held % of issued shares

Micron Holdings Pty Ltd (Cherian Family Account) 13,558,334 40.65

Micron Holdings Pty Ltd (Micron Holdings Pty Ltd Superfund A/c) 4,311,036 12.92

Mrs Elizabeth May Priscilla Thomas 1,530,702 4.59

Pacifi c Nominees Limited 1,497,196 4.49

Alumootil Mathew Cherian 750,000 2.25

Triglobal Management Limited 500,000 1.50

Dadiaso Holdings Pty Ltd 450,000 1.35

Dr Serene Lim 400,000 1.20

B&R James Investments Pty LTd 400,000 1.20

Mr David Leroy Boyles 400,000 1.20

Connaught Consultants (Finance) Pty Ltd 347,000 1.04

Damon Groenveld 300,000 0.90

Roxanne Investments Pty Ltd 300,000 0.90

Ms Serene Lim & Mr Nicholas Russell Ward 260,000 0.78

Lomas Superannuation Pty Ltd 250,000 0.75

Mr Rajiv Paramanathan 250,000 0.75

Asket Pty Ltd 226,074 0.68

Abaki Pty Ltd 202,885 0.61

Chris Bell Investments Pty Ltd 200,000 0.60

P Partnership Pacifi c Services Pty Limited 175,000 0.52

Total top 20 holders 26,308,227 78.88%

8.2.   SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder No. of shares Percentage

Micron Holdings Pty Ltd (Cherian Family Account) 13,558,334 40.65%

Micron Holdings Pty Ltd (Micron Holdings Pty Ltd Superfund A/c) 4,311,036 12.92%
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9.   CORPORATE DIRECTORY
Di recto rs
M r Steven Le igh Pynt ( Independent Non - E xecut ive Cha i r man) 
M r Mathew Cher ian (Ch ief E xecut ive Of f ice r and Manag ing D i recto r)
M r Grant Smith ( Independent Non - E xecut ive D i recto r)
M r Rober t Knowles AO ( Independent Non - E xecut ive D i recto r)
Ms Pat t ie Beerens ( Independent Non - E xecut ive D i recto r)

Company Secreta r y
M r Glenn Fowles

Head Of f ice
Leve l 2 ,  607 Bou r ke St reet
Melbourne, V icto r ia 3 0 0 0
Aust ra l ia
Te lephone: +61 (3) 9675 060 0
Facs im i le:  +61 (3) 9675 0699
Emai l :  in fo@globa l - hea l th .com 
Webs i te:  w w w.g loba l - hea l th .com 
 
Malays ia Reg is te red O f f ice
B -25 -2,  B lock B,  Jaya One
No. 72 A Ja lan Un ive r s i t i
4620 0 Peta l ing Jaya, Se langor Dar u l 
Ehsan
Malays ia
Te lephone: +603 7955 0955
Facs im i le:  +603 7955 0959

Audi to rs     
Sh ineWing Aus t ra l ia  
Leve l 10,  53 0 Co l l i n s St reet  
Melbourne, V IC 3 0 0 0 Aus t ra l ia
Te lephone: +61 3 8635 18 0 0  
Facs im i le:  +61 3 8102 3 4 0 0
Webs i te:  w w w. sh inewing.com.au 

Share Reg is t ra r
L ink Mar ket Se r v ices L im i ted
Tower 4 ,  727 Co l l i n s St reet
Melbourne, V icto r ia 3 0 0 8, 
Aus t ra l ia
Te lephone: 13 0 0 554 474  
Facs im i le:  +61 (3) 9615 98 4 8
Webs i te:  w w w. l inkmar ketse r v ices .com.au 
Emai l :  reg i s t ra r s@l inkmar ketse r v ices .com.
au

So l ici to rs
Davies Co l l i son Cave, Melbourne, 
Aus t ra l ia
F in laysons,  Adela ide, Aus t ra l ia

Bankers
Bank of Weste rn Aus t ra l ia Ltd
ANZ Bank Ltd
HSBC Ltd

Stock Exchange L i s t ing
Global Hea l th L im i ted sha res t rade on 
the Aus t ra l ian Stock E xchange 
Code: GLH
The home exchange i s  Aus t ra l ian Stock 
E xchange (Melbourne) L im i ted

Fu r the r In fo rmat ion
Fo r fu r the r info r mat ion about G loba l Hea l th L im i ted and i t s  operat ions ,  refe r to Company 
announcements to the Aus t ra l ian Stock E xchange.

Info r mat ion i s  a l so ava i lab le on ou r webs i te:  w w w.g loba l - hea l th .com.



ABN
75 091 377 892

GLH
ASX:

GLOBAL HEALTH LIMITED 
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

www.global-health.com/about-us/investor


